
 

 

Agenda - Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion 

Gwledig 
Lleoliad: 

Hybrid – Ystafelloedd Pwyllgora 1 a 2 a  

Chynhadledd Fideo drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 9 Tachwedd 

2022 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Robert Donovan 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEconomi@senedd.cymru

------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat (09.15-09.30)  

 

Cyfarfod cyhoeddus (09.30-12.00)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

 

2 Papurau i'w nodi 

(09.30)   

 

2.1 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 

 (Tudalennau 1 - 2)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Gwybodaeth gan Lywodraeth Cymru yn dilyn cwestiynau am GDPR y DU - Bil 

Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru)  Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1 - 5 Hydref 

 

2.2 Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Economi 

 (Tudalennau 3 - 7)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Mesurau Rheoli Ffin (Saesneg yn unig) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

2.3 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 

 (Tudalennau 8 - 9)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar Fil Protocol Gogledd Iwerddon 

 

2.4 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a'r Trefnydd 

 (Tudalennau 10 - 13)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru) – Cywiriadau i’r Memorandwm Esboniadol 

(Saesneg yn unig) 

 

2.5 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau 

 (Tudalen 14)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Deiseb P-06-1291 Cynnal ymchwiliad i'r pryniant corfforaethol o'r proffesiwn 

milfeddygol yng Nghymru 

 

2.6 Llythyrau at y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

 (Tudalennau 15 - 21)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai – Memorandwm 

Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad 

– Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio 



 

 

3 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7 

(09.30-10.15) (Tudalennau 22 - 69)  

 

David Bowles, Pennaeth Materion Cyhoeddus, RSPCA Cymru 

Billie-Jade Thomas, Uwch Swyddog Materion Cyhoeddus - Cymru, Y 

Gynghrair yn erbyn Chwaraeon Creulon 

Simon Wild, Cyfarwyddwr Ymgyrchoedd, Yr Ymgyrch Genedlaethol yn erbyn 

Maglau  

Collin Willson, Llywydd Cangen Cymru o Gymdeithas Milfeddygon Prydain 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff Ymchwil 

RSPCA Cymru - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig) 

Y Gynghrair yn Erbyn Chwaraeon Creulon - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

Yr Ymgyrch Genedlaethol yn Erbyn Maglau - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

Cymdeithas Milfeddygon Prydain - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

 

Egwyl (10.15-10.25)  



 

 

4 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 8 

(10.25-11.10) (Tudalennau 70 - 103) 

  

Glynn Evans, Pennaeth Anifeiliaid a Chŵn Hela,  Cymdeithas Saethu a 

Chadwraeth Prydain  

Rachel Evans, Cyfarwyddwr Cymru y Gynghrair Cefn Gwlad  

Ian Andrew, Prif Weithredwr Cymdeithas Rheoli Plâu Prydain 

John Hope, Rheolwr Technegol Cymdeithas Technegwyr Plâu Genedlaethol 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Y Gynghrair Cefn Gwlad - papur tystiolaleth (Saesneg yn unig) 

Cymdeithas Rheoli Plâu Prydain - papur tystiolaleth (Saesneg yn unig) 

Cymdeithas y Technegwyr Plâu Cenedlaethol - papur tystiolaleth (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

Yr Ymddiriedolaeth Anifeiliaid Hela a Chadwraeth Bywyd Gwyllt - papur 

tystiolaleth (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

Egwyl (11.10-11.15)  

 

5 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 9 

(11.15-12.00) 

   

Dr Ludivine Petitin, Darllenydd yn y Gyfraith, Prifysgol Caerdydd 

Dr Mary Dobbs, Uwch-ddarlithydd, Ysgol y Gyfraith a Throseddeg, Prifysgol 

Maynooth 

 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod 

(12.00)   

 



 

 

7 Preifat 

(12.00-12.20)   

Trafod tystiolaeth yn dilyn y cyfarfod 



Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref 
 
 
Paul Davies AS  
Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 
 
Paul.Davies@senedd.cymru   

 
 

24 Hydref 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Paul,  
 
Diolch am y cyfle i drafod Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru) yn sesiwn y Pwyllgor ar 5 Hydref. Yn 
ystod y cyfarfod, gofynnodd Sarah Murphy AS nifer o gwestiynau ynglŷn ag (1) a yw’r 
darpariaethau casglu data yn y Bil yn cyd-fynd â Rheoliad Cyffredinol y DU ar Ddiogelu 
Data (“GDPR y DU”), (2) a ellid gwerthu data a gesglir o dan y Bil i drydydd partïon, (3) a 
fyddai’n rhaid i ffermwyr gydsynio i ddarparu data, a (4) sut y byddai diddymiad posibl 
GDPR y DU yn effeithio ar y Bil. Cytunais i ysgrifennu at y Pwyllgor ynghylch gwerthu data i 
drydydd partïon a meddyliais efallai y byddai’n ddefnyddiol ehangu ymhellach ar y pwyntiau 
hyn yn fwy cyffredinol. 
 
Gallaf gadarnhau bod y darpariaethau casglu data yn y Bil yn cydymffurfio â GDPR y DU a’r 
ddeddfwriaeth diogelu data gyffredinol. 
 
Mewn perthynas â’r ail gwestiwn, nid oes darpariaeth o fewn y Bil sy’n atal yn benodol 
werthiant gwybodaeth a gesglir i drydydd partïon. Fodd bynnag, nid yw gwerthu data i 
drydydd partïon yn rhan o bolisi Llywodraeth Cymru nac yn fwriad ehangach gennym. Mae’r 
darpariaethau rhannu data yn y Bil yn fanwl iawn ac yn cynnwys nifer o gyfyngiadau a 
mesurau diogelu sy’n ymwneud â’r dibenion y gellir casglu data ar eu cyfer a sut y mae’r 
data i’w brosesu. Er enghraifft, dim ond i hyrwyddo un neu ragor o restr benodol a 
chyfyngedig o ddibenion a nodir yn y Bil y gellir casglu data, megis helpu i gynyddu 
cynhyrchiant, hyrwyddo tryloywder neu degwch mewn cadwyni cyflenwi bwyd-amaeth neu 
fonitro ffynonellau cyflenwi ar gyfer bwyd. 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2.1

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales
mailto:Paul.Davies@senedd.cymru


O ran mesurau diogelu, mae’r Bil yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i Weinidogion Cymru gyhoeddi 
eu gofynion drafft arfaethedig ar gyfer sylwadau o leiaf pedair wythnos cyn i’r gofynion 
gwybodaeth gael eu cyflwyno. Rhaid i’r gofynion hyn nodi’r dibenion y bydd yr wybodaeth 
yn cael ei phrosesu ar eu cyfer ac ni all prosesu’r wybodaeth dorri’r gofynion a bennir. At 
hynny, dim ond drwy ddefnyddio gweithdrefn gadarnhaol y Senedd y gall Gweinidogion 
Cymru wneud unrhyw reoliadau sy’n cyflwyno rhwymedigaethau i ddarparu gwybodaeth o 
dan y Bil. Mae hyn yn rhoi pwerau craffu sylweddol i Aelodau o’r Senedd mewn perthynas 
â’r wybodaeth sy’n cael ei chasglu. 
 
Mae mesurau diogelu pellach ar waith. Yn unol â’n rhwymedigaeth statudol i ymgynghori â 
Swyddfa’r Comisiynydd Gwybodaeth, fel Rheoleiddiwr y DU (Erthygl 36(4)) wrth ddrafftio 
deddfwriaeth sy’n effeithio ar brosesu data personol, mae swyddogion wedi ymgynghori â 
Swyddfa’r Comisiynydd Gwybodaeth ar y darpariaethau data o fewn y Bil. Mae hyn yn 
ymgysylltu parhaus ar bob agwedd ar gasglu data a diogelu data mewn perthynas â’r Bil. 
Mae Swyddfa’r Comisiynydd Gwybodaeth yn sicrhau bod y darpariaethau yn cydymffurfio 
â’r egwyddorion diogelu data a ymgorfforir yn GDPR y DU a Deddf Diogelu Data 2018. O 
ganlyniad, ni all Llywodraeth Cymru roi deddfwriaeth ar waith sy’n diystyru’r egwyddorion 
hyn ac nad yw’n parchu GDPR y DU. Mae’r broses ymgynghori statudol hon gyda 
Swyddfa’r Comisiynydd Gwybodaeth yn darparu lefel ychwanegol o ddiogelwch. 
 
O ran cydsynio i ddarparu gwybodaeth, pan gesglir data gan ffermwyr ar sail wirfoddol, er 
enghraifft gan yr Arolwg Busnes Fferm Blynyddol, mae angen eu cydsyniad i brosesu’r data. 
Mae’r Bil hefyd yn cynnwys mecanweithiau statudol sy’n gallu ei gwneud yn ofynnol i fathau 
penodol o ddata gael eu darparu gan ffermwyr at ddibenion cyfyngedig a phenodol, ac er na 
fydd angen cydsyniad ffermwyr pan ddefnyddir y mecanweithiau hyn, bydd ffermwyr yn 
gallu dylanwadu ar y gofynion hynny drwy gyflwyno sylwadau naill ai eu hunain, drwy 
gynrychiolwyr rhanddeiliaid neu Aelodau o’r Senedd am natur, effaith ac effaith ymarferol y 
gofynion arfaethedig. Yn olaf, bydd ffermwyr yn cael gwybodaeth glir am breifatrwydd mewn 
perthynas â sut y bydd eu data yn cael ei ddefnyddio gan Lywodraeth Cymru ac unrhyw 
bartneriaid. 
 
O ran y pwynt a godwyd gan Sarah Murphy AS mewn perthynas â GDPR y DU a’r 
posibilrwydd y gallai Llywodraeth y DU ei ddiddymu, gallaf gadarnhau bod swyddogion 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi bod yn gweithio gyda swyddogion Llywodraeth y DU ar y Bil Drafft 
Diogelu Data a Gwybodaeth Ddigidol. Rwy’n ymwybodol o sylwadau diweddar a wnaed gan 
yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros Dechnoleg Ddigidol, Diwylliant, y Cyfryngau a Chwaraeon, 
fodd bynnag, ar hyn o bryd nid oes gennym unrhyw wybodaeth bellach gan Lywodraeth y 
DU am yr hyn y gallai hyn ei olygu i’r Bil Drafft Diogelu Data a Gwybodaeth Ddigidol. O 
ganlyniad, mae swyddogion yn parhau i weithio ar y sail y bydd GDPR y DU a’r 
ddeddfwriaeth diogelu data gyffredinol arall sydd eisoes yn bodoli yn parhau mewn grym 
hyd nes y cânt eu diwygio neu eu disodli gan Lywodraeth y DU. Bydd unrhyw newidiadau i 
GDPR y DU yn arwain at oblygiadau eang, a bydd angen ystyried unrhyw ddeddfwriaeth 
newydd a gynigir yn lle GDPR y DU yn ofalus unwaith y bydd y manylion yn hysbys.  
 
Cofion, 

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 
 Tudalen y pecyn 2



Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 
 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
Paul Davies AS 
Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig  
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd 
CF99 1SN 

 
27 Hydref 2022 

  
Annwyl Paul 
 
Mesurau Rheoli Ffin 
 
Ymhellach i'm datganiad ysgrifenedig heddiw, mae'r Gweinidog Materion Gwledig, Gogledd 
Cymru a'r Trefnydd a minnau wedi cyhoeddi ymgynghoriad wedi'i dargedu ar ein bwriad i 
wneud deddfwriaeth Cymru er mwyn ymestyn y cyfnod graddoli trosiannol. Bydd hyn yn oedi 
cyflwyno mesurau rheoli ar y ffin a fyddai fel arall yn dechrau ar Ionawr 1af. Byddai'r offeryn 
statudol hwn hefyd yn dileu'r eithriad o rag-hysbysu am gynhyrchion sy'n teithio i Gymru o 
Weriniaeth Iwerddon. 
 
Ysgrifennais at y Gwir Anrhydeddus Jacob Rees-Mogg AS, y Gweinidog dros Gyfleoedd 
Brexit ac Effeithlonrwydd y Llywodraeth am reolaeth ar y ffin ar 13 Mehefin 2022, gan dynnu 
sylw at y materion a achoswyd gan, a'm hawydd i gael gwared ar, yr eithriad o’r gofyniad i 
rag-hysbysu cynhyrchion sy’n dod o anifeiliaid sy'n dod i mewn i Gymru o Weriniaeth 
Iwerddon. Ysgrifennais at y Gwir Anrhydeddus Nadhim Zahawi AS, Canghellor Dugiaeth 
Caerhirfryn am rag-hysbysu ar 5 Hydref 2022, gan gadarnhau fy mwriad i gychwyn y 
gofyniad hwn o fis Ionawr 2023. Nid wyf wedi derbyn atebion. 
 
Amgaeaf gopïau o'r llythyrau at sylw'r Pwyllgor.   
 
Yn gywir,  
 
 

 
 
 
Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 

Tudalen y pecyn 3

Eitem 2.2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales


Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 
 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
Ein cyf/Our ref VG/0712/22 
 
Rt Hon Jacob Rees-Mogg MP 
Minister for Brexit Opportunities 
and Government Efficiency 
Cabinet office 
70 Whitehall 
London 
SW1A 2AS 

ministerial.correspondence@cabinetoffice.gov.uk  
 

13 June 2022 
Dear Jacob,  
 
Thank you for your letter of 24 May. 
  
I am pleased to hear that our officials are working closely  on the design of the borders target 
operating model. Given that Great Britain’s biosecurity is only as strong as its weakest link, I 
regard it as essential that our governments collaborate to determine a coherent and stable 
regime. I agree the regime needs to be efficient and proportionate, recognising the costs to 
business and ultimately the consumer. Equally, however, it must protect human, plant and 
animal health, recognising the appalling cost, both economic and personal, of a major disease 
outbreak. 
 

It is therefore imperative that ministers responsible for biosecurity across all the countries of 
Great Britain work together to agree the principles and the details of the future borders regime, 
informed by joined-up advice from all our technical experts, such as the chief veterinary and 
plant officers, together with the agencies charged with protecting our health and delivering 
the regime on the ground.     
 
I would not want to see a repeat of previous borders work where the devolved administrations 
are presented with a regime once Westminster has determined its preferred outcome.  We 
need proper political engagement to shape the strategic principles and consider the practical 
issues. I therefore ask you to commit to regular GB(O) meetings where decisions on the future 
GB regime can be taken collectively.  
  
I would also like to be clear: we do not yet have  pre-notification for imports from Ireland, 
following the UK Government’s unilateral decision to exempt Irish Sea trade from the pre-
notification requirements introduced at other GB ports from January this year. Therefore, 
unlike south and east coast ports, Welsh ports do not currently have sight of real time data 
on trade flows. This lack of reliable data on the nature and volumes of imports across the Irish 
Sea is a major impediment to our preparedness and our ability to introduce more efficient 

Tudalen y pecyn 4

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales
mailto:ministerial.correspondence@cabinetoffice.gov.uk


border operations. Although your officials have begun to work with mine to compare the 
available data, at first glance, this still looks unhelpful. I appreciate the sensitivity of 
discussions around the Northern Ireland Protocol, I hope that the UK Government will agree 
to introduce pre-notification for imports from the island of Ireland by 1 January 2023 at the 
latest.  
  
Finally, I have written to the Chief Secretary of the Treasury to seek confirmation that his 
commitment to fund the costs of building Border Control Posts in Wales still stands. 
 
I am copying this letter to my colleague, Lesley Griffiths MS, Minister for Rural Affairs, North 
Wales and Trefnydd, to Mairi Gougeon MSP, Cabinet Secretary for Rural Affairs and Islands 
in the Scottish Government and to Rt. Hon George Eustice MP, Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, Rt. Hon Michael Ellis QC MP, Minister for the Cabinet 
Office and the Rt. Hon Simon Hart MP, Secretary of State for Wales. 
  
Yours sincerely  

 
Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 
 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
Ein cyf/Our ref VG/00761/22 
 
 
Rt Hon Nadhim Zahawi MP 
Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster 
Cabinet Office  
70 Whitehall  
London  
SW1A 2AS 
ministerial.correspondence@cabinetoffice.gov.uk  

 
5 October 2022 

 
Dear Nadhim, 
 
Congratulations on your appointment. I look forward to working with you and meeting you at 
forthcoming cross government discussions on the Target Operating Model for our borders.  
 
I wrote to Rt Hon Jacob Rees-Mogg MP, Minister for Brexit Opportunities and Government 
Efficiency, on 13 June 2022 about border controls and I drew attention to the issues caused 
by, and my desire to remove, the exemption from pre-notification requirement of products of 
animal origin entering GB from the island of Ireland.  I did not receive a reply. 
 
The UK Government’s unilateral decision to exempt imports of products of animal origin from 
the island of Ireland from the pre-notification requirement has left the Welsh Government and 
local authorities across GB with a significant data gap which has not been possible to 
satisfactorily address through other sources. Much of this trade travels beyond Wales’ border, 
so the lack of pre-notification means that a significant proportion of goods entering GB 
currently does so ‘under the radar’ so to speak.  It is vital that Welsh Ministers, responsible 
for biosecurity, food safety and sanitary and phytosanitary controls in Wales, understand the 
quantity, nature and risk profile of products entering Welsh ports. It is also key for our local 
authority partners who are responsible for port health functions in Wales. This data deficiency 
has hampered the planning and development of our border controls and associated 
operations and impedes any meaningful analysis of the impact of emerging Target Operating 
Model proposals on commodity risk profiling, future infrastructure and staffing needs, making 
it more difficult to achieve value for money for the taxpayer and consumer. It puts us at a 
significant disadvantage compared to those making similar arrangements in relation to 
imports from other EU countries.  
 
This letter is to confirm that as this is a devolved matter I intend to switch on this requirement 
for imports of non-‘Qualifying Northern Ireland Goods’ into Wales from January 2023.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 6

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales
mailto:ministerial.correspondence@cabinetoffice.gov.uk


I intend to add high risk food and feed not of animal origin into scope of the pre-notification 
requirement during transitional staging period in Wales too. This will greatly assist us, and the 
Food Standards Agency, in understanding flows of these goods into Wales and the 
associated risks as no such data presently exists.  
 
This change is supported by our Chief Veterinary Officer. I note that the issue has been 
discussed on more than one occasion by the Chief Veterinary Officers from all UK nations in 
the various forums of the Common UK Animal Health and Welfare Framework. We believe 
the need to do this is more pressing given that we are no longer part of the early warning 
system that EU member states participate in. My officials have also discussed this with Defra 
officials and your own in the Cabinet Office on several occasions. 
 
I would prefer that all this is done on a GB or England and Wales basis but if this is not 
possible then I plan to legislate to make this change for imports into Wales. Whichever of 
these legal routes we go down, the process needs to start as soon as possible in order to 
give importers as much notice as possible.  
 
I appreciate there are ongoing negotiations on the Northern Ireland Protocol, however, it is 
within our collective gift to set the import conditions for goods which are not eligible for 
unfettered access to the GB market under the Protocol.  
 
Whilst this particular change is about the current imports regime, I am also attached to the 
importance of pre-notification in the future regime too. It is essential that the competent 
authorities know sufficiently in advance what is being imported so they can understand and 
assess the potential biosecurity and food safety implications and have the necessary 
resources to hand should an identity or physical check be required. This advance notice, 
which is done digitally and in line with modernised border controls, is even more important for 
the smaller and more remote ports.  It may be that this information can eventually be obtained 
via a single portal with the need for separate SPS and customs declarations becoming 
redundant but until that capability exists, we shall need to rely on pre-notification via IPAFFS. 
 
As previously discussed with Defra, my officials will seek competent authority level access to 
IPAFFS for Welsh Government officials and our local authorities who are responsible for port 
health matters so we can effectively make use of this pre-notification data. 
 
I am copying this letter to my colleagues Lesley Griffiths MS, Minister for Rural Affairs, North 
Wales and Trefnydd, to Mairi Gougeon MSP, Cabinet Secretary for Rural Affairs and Islands 
in the Scottish Government, to Rt Hon Ranil Jaywardena MP, Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, Rt Hon Edward Argar MP, Minister for the Cabinet 
Office and Rt Hon Robert Buckland MP, Secretary of State for Wales. 
 
Yours sincerely,  

 
Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 

Tudalen y pecyn 7



Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
Y Gwir Anrhydeddus Elin Jones AS  
Llywydd a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Busnes 
Senedd Cymru 
Caerdydd,  
CF99 1SN 
 

llywydd@senedd.wales 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
27 Hydref 2022 

 
 
 
 

 
Annwyl Elin,  
 
Fel y byddwch yn gwybod, yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Busnes ar 4 Hydref, cafodd y 
memorandwm cydsyniad deddfwriaethol ar gyfer Bil Protocol Gogledd Iwerddon ("y Bil") ei 
atgyfeirio i'r Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad, y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, 
Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon, a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol a Phwyllgor yr Economi, 
Masnach a Materion Gwledig, gyda'r dyddiad cau ar gyfer adrodd ar 7 Tachwedd. Roedd 
hyn oherwydd y drafodaeth cydsyniad deddfwriaethol wedi'i threfnu yn y Senedd ar gyfer 8 
Tachwedd, mewn perthynas â pha mor gyflym mae Llywodraeth y DU yn bwriadu symud y 
Bil drwy Senedd y DU. 
 
Yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Busnes ar 18 Hydref, ymrwymais i ddarparu diweddariad pe bai 
modd estyn y cyfnod a roddwyd i'r pwyllgorau perthnasol ar gyfer adrodd ar y 
memorandwm.  
 
Mewn ymateb i ddiweddariadau i'r amserlen yn Nhŷ'r Arglwyddi, rydym bellach yn cynnig 
cynnal y drafodaeth cydsyniad deddfwriaethol ar 15 Tachwedd. Felly, rwy'n gallu argymell 
bod y cyfnod ar gyfer adrodd ar y memorandwm cydsyniad deddfwriaethol yn cael ei estyn i 
14 Tachwedd, y diwrnod cyn y dyddiad newydd ar gyfer y drafodaeth. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 8

Eitem 2.3

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales
mailto:llywydd@senedd.wales


Os yw'r Pwyllgor Busnes yn cytuno i'r estyniad hwn, rwy'n gobeithio y bydd y craffu 
ychwanegol yn cael ei groesawu gan y pwyllgorau perthnasol. Mae'r sefyllfa mewn 
perthynas â'r Bil yn parhau i ddatblygu yn gyflym, ac os wy'n clywed am newidiadau 
perthnasol eraill, byddaf yn rhoi diweddariad i'r Pwyllgor Busnes yn y cyfarfod nesaf ar 8 
Tachwedd. 
 
Cofion,  

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 9



Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
Paul Davies AS  
Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 
 
Paul.davies@senedd.wales 
 
 

 
 

1 Tachwedd 2022 
 

 
 
Annwyl Paul, 
 
Er mwyn helpu’r Pwyllgor â Cham 1 y broses o graffu ar Fil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru), 
hoffwn dynnu’ch sylw at nifer fach o gywiriadau yr oedd angen eu gwneud i’r Memorandwm 
Esboniadol yn sgil ei adolygu gan swyddogion.  
 
Rwyf wedi’u cynnwys yn y ddogfen atodedig er gwybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor.  
 
Cofion,  

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 10

Eitem 2.4

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales
mailto:Paul.davies@senedd.wales


Annex 1 - Table of changes to the Explanatory Memorandum  
 
Definitions  
 

Page / Paragraph 

3.298 The definition of “agriculture” is not exhaustive (in the sense that 
it includes a fixed list of activities), but what is included within each 
subheading of that definition is expanded on within the list below;   
 
a) The management and cultivation of gardens, including ornamental  
horticulture and market gardens (as forms of horticulture).  
b) Farming arable crops for the production of food or agricultural goods,  
includes the use of crops grown for bioenergy.  
c) The keeping and breeding of livestock for the production of food, 
drink,  
oils, fibres or leathers or to graze land.  
d) The practice of keeping dairy animals for the production of dairy  
products.  
e) Controlled environment agriculture which is the growing of plants in 
a  
closed ecosystem in which environmental variables are controlled. This  
ranges from the use of polytunnels to vertical farming methods. 
 
The definition of “agriculture” can be amended by regulations made by 
the Welsh Ministers. So, for example, the activities in section 48(1)(a) 
to (i) could be removed or amended, or a new activity added into 
section 48(1). 
 

Paragraph 3.298  
 
 
 

Food Strategy 
 

Page / Paragraph 

The Programme for Government and the Co-operation Agreement 
commit to developing a Community Food Strategy (CSA CFS) to 
encourage the production and supply of locally sourced food. The CSA 
CFS may include relevant to targets/objectives to the production of 
food in an environmentally sustainable manner. 

Paragraph 7.561 

Forestry 
 

Page / Paragraph 

Refusal of licences or consent is currently avoided by informal 
agreement between NRW and licence applicant, but such agreement is 
not legally enforceable. 
 
Is actually part of the paragraph 3.211, not a heading.  
 

Paragraph 3.211 

“compensation is made available when a felling licence is amended, 
suspended or revoked due to environmental harm…” 
 
 

Paragraph 3.239   

Snares & Glue traps  
 

Page / Paragraph 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



Following indications from Department for Environment, Food and 
Rural Affairs (Defra) that consideration was being given to legislate to 
regulate glue traps in England, and during a review of options in Wales, 
an opportunity to amend the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 was 
identified within the Agriculture (Wales) Bill. Officials engaged with 
stakeholders between November 2021 and January 2022. Responses 
were sought from the pest control industry; animal welfare 
organisations; and local authorities in order to understand the scale of 
use; the impact of, and for support for, a ban; and any other evidence 
for or against banning glue traps 

Paragraph 4.42  
 

Responses covering seven six of the 22 local authorities in Wales were 
received to the targeted stakeholder consultation. Of these, five two 
responded to state they rarely never use glue traps and two only in 
extremely limited circumstances. One local authority quantified this as 
being far less than 1 per cent of all pest control incidents and another 
had not used them in the preceding 12 months. 

Paragraph 4.45  
 

Snares: It has not been possible to quantify the impact of banning 
snares on businesses and individuals who use them. We expect a glue 
trap ban on snares will have minimal financial impact in the long term. 

Page 105 

There is substantial public opinion that there is a need to ban the use of 
snares in Wales. 

Paragraph 7.795  
 

‘Representations covering seven six local authorities in Wales were 
received to the targeted stakeholder consultation. Of these, five two 
responded to state they rarely never use glue traps and two only in 
extremely limited circumstances. One local authority quantified this as 
being far less than 1 per cent of all pest control incidents and another 
had not used them in the preceding 12 months 

Paragraph 7.814  
 

It should be noted that where other licensing systems for the use of 
glue traps exist, such as the system the State of Victoria in Australia 
had until recently (they now have a total ban), professional pest 
controllers are required to have an operating licence and are regulated 
by the state government. England has yet to release any details on 
how pest controllers will be defined in the legislation to ban glue traps 
in England – this is not due to come into force until spring 2024 

Page 350, 
footnote 320 

The Scottish Government, having initially indicated regulations might 
be introduced to restrict the use of glue traps to professional pest 
controllers, have recently (in January 2022) announced a complete 
ban, although they await suitable legislation to take this forward. This 
followed a petition of over 5,000 signatures in Scotland calling for a ban 
on the use and sale of glue traps. 

Paragraph 7.824 

Rentokil is one of the largest pest control businesses in the UK and it 
has adopted a policy of not using glue traps T, this is despite having 
contracts with premises identified by the trade body BPCA as ‘high risk’ 
(such as hospitals). 

Paragraph 7.874 

‘….but it is unlikely to come into force until late summer / early autumn 
2023….’ 

Paragraph 7.875 

Local authorities have responsibility for pest control within various 
public services (the extent varies from local authority to local authority) 
and during consultation five two of the seven six local authorities 
represented reported never using glue traps but and two only in a very 

Paragraph 7.877 

Tudalen y pecyn 12



limited number of cases – one local authority was able to quantify this 
as far less than 1 per cent of all pest control incidents and the other 
had not used them in the past year. Shared Regulatory Services 
(minus Cardiff Council which responded separately) estimated using 
glue traps for rodents about a dozen times a year. 
Following a ban on glue traps those five four338 local authorities that 
use glue traps will have to switch to alternative methods 

338There are 15 16 local authorities who did not respond to the 
consultation, and it is reasonable to assume there will be a mix of 
those that do and do not use glue traps amongst them. 

 

Paragraph 7.878 

Compliance with the new legislation will be predicated, as most 
legislation is, upon the majority of people adhering to the law. Once the 
indicated ban on glue traps has been passed into law in Scotland and 
England’s ban comes into force (spring 2024) iIt may be possible to 
introduce restrictions on the sale of glue traps, to further aid 
enforcement, which would require a review of any impact on the police 

Paragraph 7.887 

Increased standards in animal welfare clearly benefits wider society341. 
 

Paragraph 7.899 

Agricultural Markets 
 

Page / Paragraph 

The section beginning on page 299 is incorrectly titled as intervention 
in agricultural markets, when it should be marketing standards. This 
also applies to the title of Option 2 on page 300. 
 

Page 299 and 300 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



 

 

 

1 Tachwedd 2022 

Annwyl Paul 

Deiseb P-06-1291 Cynnal ymchwiliad i'r pryniant corfforaethol o'r proffesiwn milfeddygol yng 

Nghymru 

Trafododd y Pwyllgor Deisebau’r ddeiseb uchod yn ein cyfarfod ar 17 Hydref, ynghyd â gohebiaeth 

gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru a’r Trefnydd, Cats Matter a’r deisebydd. 

Yn y cyfarfod, cytunodd yr aelodau i ysgrifennu at eich Pwyllgor er mwyn dod â'r ddeiseb i'ch sylw ac 

i ofyn pa gynlluniau sydd gan eich Pwyllgor mewn lle i edrych ar y materion a godwyd yn y ddeiseb 

fel rhan o'ch rhaglen waith, yn enwedig o ran safonau gofal anifeiliaid. 

Mae rhagor o wybodaeth am y ddeiseb, gan gynnwys gohebiaeth gysylltiedig, ar gael ar ein gwefan 

at: https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=39835&Opt=3.  

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch â thîm clercio'r Pwyllgor drwy’r cyfeiriad e-bost isod, 

neu drwy ffonio 0300 200 6454. Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech ymateb drwy e-bostio’r tîm clercio: 

deisebau@senedd.cymru. 

Yn gywir 

 

Jack Sargeant AS 

Cadeirydd  

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Y Pwyllgor Deisebau 
— 
Petitions Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

Deisebau@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddDeisebau  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
Petitions@senedd.wales  

senedd. wales/SeneddPetitions 
0300 200 6565 

Paul Davies AS  

Cadeirydd 

Y Pwyllgor Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 

Tŷ Hywel  

Bae Caerdydd 

CF99 1SN 

Tudalen y pecyn 14

Eitem 2.5

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=39835&Opt=3
mailto:deisebau@senedd.cymru


 

 

 

 

 

1 Tachwedd 2022  

 

Annwyl Julie, 

Y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar y Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio 

Yn ein cyfarfod ar 27 Hydref, gwnaethom drafod y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar y Bil 

Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio. Er mwyn ein galluogi i wneud penderfyniad ar sail gwybodaeth ynghylch a 

ddylid argymell rhoi cydsyniad ai peidio, byddem yn ddiolchgar o gael rhagor o wybodaeth mewn 

dau faes yn benodol.  

Yn gyntaf, nodwn fod cymal 187 (crwydraeth a chardota) yn ddarpariaeth “cadw lle”, felly nid yw’n glir 

eto a yw’n ddarpariaeth berthnasol at ddibenion Rheol Sefydlog 29 ai peidio. Mae’r Memorandwm yn 

nodi bod eglurder yn cael ei geisio mewn perthynas â chymal 187 gan nad yw’r tabl cymhwyso yn yr 

Atodiad i’r Nodiadau Esboniadol yn nodi nad yw’n gymwys o ran Cymru; fodd bynnag, nid yw’r 

cymal, fel y’i drafftiwyd ar hyn o bryd, yn cyfyngu ar bŵer yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol i wneud rheoliadau 

sy’n gymwys o ran Lloegr yn unig. Fel y gallwch werthfawrogi, mae’n siŵr, ni fyddwn mewn sefyllfa i 

wneud penderfyniad ynghylch cydsyniad deddfwriaethol hyd nes y bydd cymal 187 yn cael ei ddisodli 

gan ddarpariaeth o sylwedd ac y gellir rhoi eglurder ynghylch ei gymhwyso. Gan hynny, byddwn yn 

ddiolchgar pe gallech roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ynghylch a gynhaliwyd unrhyw drafodaethau â 

Llywodraeth y DU ynglŷn â chymal 187. 

Yn ail, nodwn fod y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol yn dweud: 

Mae Llywodraeth y DU yn nodi y bydd gan y Bil cyffredinol oblygiadau ariannol i’r 

sector cyhoeddus, gan gynnwys llywodraeth leol, y llywodraeth ganolog a’r 

Arolygiaeth Gynllunio. Mae Llywodraeth y DU yn nodi y bydd cydbwysedd rhwng y 

costau hyn a’r arbedion effeithlonrwydd. 

Y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol  
a Thai 

— 

Local Government  
and Housing Committee 

Senedd Cymru 

Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 
SeneddTai@senedd.cymru 

senedd.cymru/SeneddTai  

0300 200 6565  

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddHousing@senedd.wales  

senedd.wales/SeneddHousing 

0300 200 6565  Julie James AS 

Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

Llywodraeth Cymru  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 15

Eitem 2.6



 

 

Fodd bynnag, nid yw’r Memorandwm yn cyfeirio o gwbl at safbwynt Llywodraeth Cymru ar 

oblygiadau ariannol y Bil hwn. Byddem yn ddiolchgar, felly, pe gallech amlinellu eich safbwynt ar 

oblygiadau ariannol y Bil i Gymru.  

Byddem yn ddiolchgar o gael ymateb erbyn 10 Tachwedd fel y gallwn ei ystyried wrth drafod y 

Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol yn ein cyfarfod ar 16 Tachwedd. 

Rwy’n anfon copi o’r llythyr hwn at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad; 

Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith; a Chadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, 

Masnach a Materion Gwledig.  

Yn gywir,  

 

John Griffiths AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth,  
Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad  
— 
Legislation, Justice and  
Constitution Committee  

Senedd Cymru  
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN  

SeneddDCC@senedd.cymru  
senedd.cymru/SeneddDCC  

0300 200 6565  

— 
Senedd Cymru  

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN  
SeneddLJC@senedd.wales  

senedd.wales/SeneddLJC  
0300 200 6565  

2 Tachwedd 2022  

  

 

Annwyl Julie  

Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Y Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio 

Rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch ynglŷn â’r Memorandwm uchod, a drafodwyd yn ein cyfarfod ar 24 Hydref 
2022.  

Rydym yn nodi bod y Memorandwm yn cyfeirio ym mharagraff 3 at llythyr a ysgrifennwyd gennych at 
y Llywydd sy’n esbonio:  

“… ei bod wedi cymryd amser i lawn ystyried yr effeithiau y bydd yr hyn a gynigir 
yn y Bil yn eu cael ar ddatganoli, a hynny oherwydd nad oedd Llywodraeth y DU 
wedi ymgysylltu fawr ddim â ni cyn i’r Bil gael ei gyflwyno ac oherwydd bod y Bil yn 
un cymhleth. O’r herwydd, nid oedd modd gosod y Memorandwm Cydsyniad 
Deddfwriaethol hwn o fewn y terfyn amser arferol o bythefnos a bennir yn RhS29.” 

Rydym yn siomedig â’r diffyg ymgysylltiad gan Lywodraeth y DU i egluro ei chynigion ac yn cydnabod 
y sefyllfa anodd i Lywodraeth Cymru o ganlyniad i hynny.    

Serch hynny, rydym yn pryderu, tua phedwar mis ar ôl cyflwyno’r Bil i Senedd y DU, bod cynnwys y 
Memorandwm a osodwyd gerbron y Senedd yn brin iawn o fanylion angenrheidiol nad ydym yn 
credu y byddai’n galluogi’r Senedd i lunio barn wybodus ar y mater o ran a ddylid rhoi cydsyniad ai 
peidio.  

Julie James AS  
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd  

Tudalen y pecyn 17

https://senedd.cymru/media/aekd01xo/lcm-ld15356-w.pdf
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=13002&Ver=4
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=13002&Ver=4
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s125561/LJC6-16-22%20-%20Papur%203%20-%20Llythyr%20gan%20y%20Gweinidog%20Newid%20Hinsawdd%20at%20y%20Llywydd%2024%20Mai%202022.pdf


 

 

 

Rydym yn tynnu sylw at 20 o gwestiynau yn yr Atodiad i'r llythyr hwn sy'n gofyn am eglurhad 
ynghylch amrywiaeth o faterion. Yn ein barn ni, mae angen mynd i’r afael â’r ymatebion i’r rhan fwyaf 
o’r cwestiynau hyn mewn Memorandwm diwygiedig.  

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar o gael ymateb i’r llythyr hwn cyn gynted â phosibl, ynghyd â chadarnhad bod 
Memorandwm diwygiedig wedi’i osod neu y bydd yn cael ei osod gerbron y Senedd fel mater o frys.  

Y dyddiad cau presennol ar gyfer adrodd yw 8 Rhagfyr 2022 ond mae ein gallu i gwrdd â'r dyddiad 
cau hwnnw wedi'i gyfyngu gan y sefyllfa rydym ni a phwyllgorau eraill yn ei hwynebu nawr. Wrth osod 
Memorandwm diwygiedig, felly, rydym yn credu y dylid ailystyried y dyddiad cau.  

Rwyf felly yn anfon copi o’r llythyr hwn at y Llywydd fel Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Busnes, yn ogystal â 
Chadeiryddion y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith,  y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a 
Thai a Phwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig.  

Yn gywir 

 

Huw Irranca-Davies 
Cadeirydd 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 18



 

 

Atodiad 1 – Cwestiynau i'r Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

1. A all y Gweinidog egluro'n llawn y gwahaniaeth barn rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a Llywodraeth y DU 
ynghylch a oes angen cydsyniad y Senedd ar gyfer Rhan 1 o'r Bil? Pa drafodaethau y mae'r 
Gweinidog wedi'u cael gyda Llywodraeth y DU mewn perthynas â hyn? 

2. A yw'r Gweinidog yn gallu darparu mwy o wybodaeth ynghylch polisi Llywodraeth Cymru ynglŷn â 
chynnwys cymalau 1-6 a'r rhesymau sylweddol dros ei hargymhelliad na ddylai’r Senedd roi cydsyniad 
i’r darpariaethau hyn? 

3. A all y Gweinidog gadarnhau pam fod y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol yn cyfeirio at 
gymal 96 (Pleidleisiau Strydoedd) sydd angen cydsyniad ym marn Llywodraeth y DU, pan nad yw'r 
farn hon yn cael ei hadlewyrchu yn y Nodiadau Esboniadol i'r Bil?  

4. A yw’r Gweinidog mewn sefyllfa i geisio eglurder ynghylch pam y mae Llywodraeth y DU wedi 
cynnwys cymal 78 fel un sy’n gofyn am gydsyniad yn y Nodiadau Esboniadol, pan mae cymal 78 yn 
dwyn y teitl “Power to require use of approved planning data software in England”. A fwriedir i gymal 
78 fod yn gymwys i Gymru neu a yw Llywodraeth y DU wedi nodi ar gam ei fod yn gymwys i Gymru? 

5. A yw’r Gweinidog wedi codi’r anghysondeb rhwng y Nodiadau Esboniadol, yn union cyn paragraff 
470, a’r Bil yng nghymal 77 ynghylch teitl cymal 77, lle mae’r Nodiadau Esboniadol yn cyfeirio at 
Loegr ond nad yw’r cymal ei hun yn cyfeirio ato? A yw’r Gweinidog yn hyderus bod y cymal hwn yn 
gymwys i Gymru? 

6. A all y Gweinidog roi rhagor o fanylion am y pwerau newydd a ddarperir i’r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol 
gan Bennod 1 o Ran 3, cymal 96 a chymal 112, a chadarnhau pa effaith y byddai’r pwerau hyn yn ei 
chael yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys unrhyw effaith ar gymhwysedd deddfwriaethol y Senedd a 
chymhwysedd gweithredol Gweinidogion Cymru? 

7. A all y Gweinidog esbonio'r rhesymeg y tu ôl i'w datganiad ym mharagraff 58 o'r Memorandwm 
Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol bod “gan ddau faes, sef data cynllunio ac adroddiadau ar ganlyniadau 
amgylcheddol, fuddion posibl i Gymru, ond mae’r ffordd y maent wedi’u drafftio ar hyn o bryd yn 
golygu na ellir gwireddu’r buddion hyn.” Beth yw'r buddion posibl y cyfeirir atynt? Pam mae’r ffordd y 
maent wedi’u drafftio ar hyn o bryd yn golygu na ellir gwireddu buddion o'r fath? 

8. A all y Gweinidog ddarparu gwybodaeth bellach mewn perthynas â'r datganiad ym mharagraff 59 
o'r Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol sy’n dweud “nid yw’r ffordd y mae’r pwerau ar ddata 
digidol wedi’u drafftio ar hyn o bryd yn cyd-fynd â’n dyhead i ddeddfu dros Gymru.” Ym mha ffordd y 
mae’r ffordd y maent wedi’u drafftio ar hyn o bryd yn cael yr effaith hon? A yw'r cyfeiriad at “ddata 
digidol” yn gyfeiriad at ddata cynllunio? 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



 

 

9. Nid yw’r Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol yn dod i gasgliad clir o ran a yw’n briodol i bob 
un o’r cymalau ym Mhennod 1 o Ran 3, cymal 96 neu gymal 112 gael eu cynnwys yn y Bil, ac nid yw 
ychwaith yn cynnig argymhelliad clir ynghylch a ddylid rhoi cydsyniad ai peidio i'r darpariaethau hyn. 
A all y Gweinidog gadarnhau’r sefyllfa yn hyn o beth? 

10. A all y Gweinidog gadarnhau’r cymalau penodol y cyfeirir atynt ym mharagraffau 58 a 59 o’r 
Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol?  

11. A all y Gweinidog gadarnhau pa gymalau y cyfeirir atynt fel “y cymalau mewn perthynas â 
chynllunio” ym mharagraff 64 o’r Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol? A yw hyn yn cynnwys 
cymal 112? 

12. A all y Gweinidog ofyn am gadarnhad gan Lywodraeth y DU ynghylch sut y bydd y darpariaethau 
cynllunio yn gweithio’n ymarferol, gan gynnwys darparu dadansoddiad o’r cymalau mewn perthynas 
â chynllunio ac egluro sut y bydd darpariaethau’r Bil yn effeithio ar awdurdodau Cymru mewn termau 
real? A all y Gweinidog gadarnhau pwy, yng Nghymru, yr ystyrir ei fod yn ‘awdurdod cynllunio 
perthnasol’ at ddibenion y Bennod hon? 

13. A all y Gweinidog gadarnhau pa ddarpariaethau yn Rhan 5 o'r Bil sy'n ymwneud â materion a 
gedwir yn ôl a pha rai sy'n ymwneud â materion datganoledig, fel y cyfeirir atynt ym mharagraff 49 
o'r Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol? 

14. Gan gyfeirio at baragraff 58 o'r Bil, a all y Gweinidog gadarnhau manylion y buddion posibl y 
mae'n rhagweld i system well o adroddiadau cynllunio amgylcheddol ac a gynhaliwyd trafodaethau 
gyda Llywodraeth y DU gyda'r bwriad o wireddu'r buddion hyn yn y Bil? A all y Gweinidog hefyd 
gadarnhau beth a olygir gan "adrodd ar ganlyniadau cynllunio" ym mharagraff 58? 

15. A all y Gweinidog egluro sut mae’r darpariaethau presennol yn golygu bod Gweinidogion Cymru 
wedi colli eu gallu i wneud rheoliadau Cymru mewn perthynas ag adroddiadau ar ganlyniadau 
amgylcheddol? 

16.  A all y Gweinidog nodi a roddir cefnogaeth ai peidio i gynnwys y darpariaethau yn Rhan 5 yn y 
Bil, fel sy’n ofynnol o dan Reol Sefydlog 29.3(iii), ac a ddylid rhoi cydsyniad ai peidio? 

17. A all y Gweinidog roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am unrhyw drafodaethau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda 
Llywodraeth y DU ynghylch cymalau 96 a 187?  

18. A yw'r Gweinidog wedi trafod cymalau 80 a 121 o'r Bil â Llywodraeth y DU a cheisio diwygio'r 
darpariaethau i'w gwneud yn ofynnol i Lywodraeth y DU, o leiaf, gael cydsyniad Gweinidogion Cymru 
cyn gwneud rheoliadau data cynllunio neu reoliadau adroddiadau ar ganlyniadau amgylcheddol sy’n 
cynnwys darpariaeth sydd o fewn cymhwysedd datganoledig Cymru? Beth fu canlyniad y 
trafodaethau hyn? 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 

 

19. A oes gan y Gweinidog unrhyw farn ar gynnwys pwerau Harri VIII yng nghymalau 129 a 191 o'r Bil? 
A yw’r Gweinidog wedi trafod cymal 129 a/neu gymal 191 gyda Llywodraeth y DU i geisio eu diwygio 
neu eu dileu? Beth fu canlyniad unrhyw drafodaethau? 

20. A all y Gweinidog fynegi unrhyw farn ar oblygiadau ariannol y Bil hwn i Gymru? 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 22

Eitem 3



 

 

 www.RSPCA.cymru 
 www.politicalanimal.wales 

PAGE 1 politicalaffairs@rspca.org.uk 
0300 123 8910 

 

 

 
 

 Consultation Response 
   FROM THE RSPCA IN WALES  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Evidence to the Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs 
Committee: Agriculture (Wales) Bill 
November 2022 
 
Overview:  
RSPCA Cymru strongly welcomes the introduction of the Agriculture (Wales) Bill 2022 to the Senedd, 
and look forward to contributing evidence to both Members and Committees over the coming months to 
ensure that animal welfare is at the forefront of agriculture policy in Wales. 

 
Key Points:  

● The Agriculture (Wales) Bill 2022 is the largest opportunity to ensure that animal welfare is at the 
forefront of agricultural policy in Wales since the introduction of devolution and possibly since the 
1947 Agriculture Act 

● RSPCA Cymru welcome the proposed ban on the use of glue traps and snares within this 
legislation, however are aware that there is currently no intention to place a ban on their sale. 

● We welcome the potential for financial incentives to be provided to farmers within the agriculture 
sector in Wales who provide high standards in regards to animal health and welfare, however are 
aware there is no obligation for Ministers to use their powers. 

 
RSPCA Cymru welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Economy, Trade, and Rural Affairs 
Committee’s consultation on the Welsh Government’s Agriculture (Wales) Bill. The scrutinising process 
of the Agriculture (Wales) Bill comes at a critical time for Agriculture in Wales, and is set to influence the 
manner in which animals in Wales will be reared in years to come following Wales’ exit from the 
European Union. The RSPCA have been previously concerned with the implications for Agriculture and 
farming support in Wales when the UK was a member of the EU, as there was little opportunity within the 
Common Agriculture Policy to  promote support towards animal welfare, given that 80% of the financial 
package available was for direct support which was a blunt instrument to pay farmers to produce food 
rather than promote public goods such as animal welfare or the environment. Leaving the European 
Union gives Wales a huge opportunity to use the present farm support budget, which is ring fenced until 
2024 for ensuring animal welfare becomes a key objective for the Welsh Government in its agriculture 
policy.  
In Wales, there are almost 9.5 million sheep, alongside over a million cattle and over 10 million poultry1. 
It is evident that the Agriculture (Wales) Bill will impact a significant number of animals in Wales, with 
positive changes within welfare policy in the farming sector has the potential to change the lives of many 
animals across Wales. We have consistently pressured the Welsh Government to commit to the 
improvement of animal welfare across Wales, and it is our utmost belief that an Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

 
1 Welsh Government - Farming facts and figures: 2022 - 23 August 2022 

Tudalen y pecyn 52

mailto:politicalaffairs@rspca.org.uk


 

 

 www.RSPCA.cymru 
 www.politicalanimal.wales 

PAGE 2 politicalaffairs@rspca.org.uk 
0300 123 8910 

 

will commit to the improvement of animal welfare across the farming sector.  This is particularly important 
now, at a time when the sustainability of Welsh farming is under threat from Free Trade Agreements 
(FTAs) that the UK Government has signed or is negotiating.  The Australian and New Zealand FTAs 
have now both been laid in the House of Commons and will come into effect by 1 January 2023.  This 
will hugely increase tariff free imports of beef and lamb from Australia and New Zealand, without any 
pre-conditions. Australia in particular has lower animal welfare standards than Wales (eg maximum 
transport times of 48 hours compared to 24 in Wales, hot branding of cattle permitted, 20% of cattle 
reared in barren feedlots which are essentially banned in Wales).  It is too early to assess the 
implications of this deal on Welsh hill sheep farmers or lowland cattle farmers but the Wales Agriculture 
Bill provides a perfect opportunity to reward farmers for producing to a high welfare level to counteract 
the impacts of cheaper beef and lamb entering the UK under the FTAs.  

 
Glue-traps and Snares 
 
RSPCA welcomes the publication of the Agriculture (Wales) Bill, and the introduced commitment by the 
Welsh Government to place a ban on the use of both glue traps and snares across Wales through this 
legislation. England banned the use but not the sale of glue traps earlier this year though specific 
guidelines on how it will be implemented still need to be drawn up. The RSPCA has provided evidence 
previously to the Welsh Government on the dangers of the use of glue traps and snares on animal 
welfare in Wales.   
RSPCA Cymru are opposed to the sale, use and manufacture of all snares, with frontline officers 
regularly dealing with incidents where animals are found suffering in these contraptions.  Between 2014 
and 2018, the RSPCA received 106 reports in Wales where the caller specifically referenced a snare2 - 
though the precise number of reports is likely to be considerably higher. Te extent of the use of snares in 
Wales is ‘hard to determine’3 given a lack of data. Since 2019, the RSPCA have dealt with 12 cases 
reported to our emergency line involving a snare - with six cases reported in 2020 and an additional four 
reported in 2021.  These will involve often non target animals including badgers, which are protected, 
and domestic animals such as cats.  
The use of snares in Wales is still widespread. A RSPCA study in 2013 found that snares were used on 
6% of all landholdings.  Extrapolation suggested that, at any one time and depending on the season, 
between 17,200 and 51,600 fox snares were in use in Wales at any one time4. The use of fox snares in 
Wales is subject to legal restrictions, principally through the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Animal 
Welfare Act 2006 and Deer Act 1991. The use of self-locking snares which tighten with a ratchet-like 
mechanism is illegal as is the use of snares to catch certain protected animals like badgers and otters.  

In 2015 the Welsh Government introduced a code of best practice on the use of snares in fox control and 
users of legal free-running snares must take all reasonable precautions to prevent them catching or 
causing injury to protected animals like badgers, and to check set snares at least once per day.  However, 
as a voluntary code, there is no legal obligation on any individual setting a snare to follow the guidance. 
The RSPCA evidence shows that the existing Code of Practice on the use of snares for foxes in particular 
has failed to deliver improvements to welfare.   

Snares are indiscriminate, and any animal that moves through the noose is a potential victim. This can 
include domestic pets and sadly, RSPCA officers regularly respond to incidents where wildlife and pets 
have become injured as a consequence of getting trapped in a snare.  For instance, in October of 2019, a 
young fox trapped in a snare near Fishguard was rescued and released by RSPCA Cymru, with the snare 
found to be set at the base of a tree. This is currently not compliant with the current Welsh Government’s 
voluntary code of practice on their use5.  

 
2 RSPCA call statistics - incidents logged in Wales via the RSPCA's National Control Centre, between 1 January 
2014 and 31 December 2018. 
3 Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee - Report on the use of snares in Wales, p5, June 2017 
4Written Assembly Question - WAQ66377, February 2014. This outlined estimates which state the number of fox 
snares set in Wales are at a maximum in March at 51,641. 
5 RSPCA News - Distressed fox found in illegally-set snare - 22 October 2019 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



 

 

 www.RSPCA.cymru 
 www.politicalanimal.wales 

PAGE 3 politicalaffairs@rspca.org.uk 
0300 123 8910 

 

The RSPCA 2013 survey found very few farmers had any formal training on the use of snares. A large 
number (84%) of operators made efforts to avoid capture of non-targets, but non-target species were still 
caught. 60% of operators had caught non-targets in fox snares at some time. In the fox snare field trials, 
non-target species were captured despite careful adherence to the Code of Practice by a competent and 
conscientious operator.  The survey further found that no fox snarer was fully compliant with Code - in part 
because, at the time, no commercial snares were available off the shelves that were fully compliant. It was 
found that manufacturers’ claims regarding compliance with the code could not be relied on.  Quality of 
snare components is very important in the context of compliance and functioning of snare. So even with 
adherence to good practice, estimates suggest the number of non-target species caught by a snare is 
unlikely to drop below 40 percent6. This illustrates a major problem with snares - that it is near impossible 
to limit the species or type of animal that will become trapped in them. The indiscriminate nature of snares 
was further highlighted by the National Assembly for Wales' Climate Change, Environment and Rural 
Affairs Committee, who noted that snares pose "a risk to the welfare of target and non-target species”7. 

So the RSPCA are pleased to see the intention in the Bill to prohibit the use of snares, alongside other 
cable restraints, for trapping or killing an animal.  This proposed ban is world leading as it will see Wales 
become the first nation in the UK to introduce a formal legislative ban on the use of these traps.  

RSPCA Cymru have also long campaigned for a ban on glue boards, and welcome the ban proposed in 
the Agriculture (Wales) Bill, and believe that this Bill can drive reform across the UK in regards to the use 
of both snares and glue traps. Numerous incidents involving animals in glue traps underline the 
RSPCA’s call to ban the sale and use in Wales.  Between 2017 and 2022, seven incidents in regards to 
glue traps have been reported to the RSPCA in Wales, with 73% of incidents reported to the RSPCA 
concerning glue traps involving non-target species such as pets and other wild animals, many of which 
were too injured to survive. 
 
However, in its current state, the Bill fails to acknowledge how the Welsh Government intends to enforce 
the ban on both snares and glue traps, with a ban on the sale of these traps in Wales not introduced 
within this piece of legislation and only an emphasis on the ban of their use. As a result, there is no 
indication as to how the sale of snares and glue traps in Wales will be regulated to ensure that the traps 
are not used. 
The RSPCA believe the inclusion of a ban on the use of glue traps and snares within Wales as a first 
step but further work needs to occur on the enforcement to prevent the use of snares and glue traps. In 
particular the Bill does not ban the sale of these traps in Wales and this may be a loophole that will be 
used to circumvent the ban on their use.  
 
Sustainable Farming Scheme (SFS) 
 
RSPCA Cymru welcomes the plans outlined in the Agriculture (Wales) Bill to introduce the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme, which provides a strong indication to include a system that will recognise and reward 
higher welfare standards within the farming sector. RSPCA Cymru have long called for farmers 
delivering the highest standards of animal welfare to be financially incentivised for their work - believing 
that this will ultimately encourage farmers within the sector to ensure that animal welfare is at the 
forefront of their work. 
 
RSPCA Cymru welcomed the powers set to be provided to Welsh Ministers to provide support to farmers 
delivering on animal welfare following Wales’s exit out of the European Union and market. RSPCA 
Cymru welcome the powers in regards to farming support given to Welsh Ministers, which we believe will 
allow and enable the continued operation of existing farming support in Wales, whilst ensuring effective 
operation within the sector and markets. The provided support by Welsh Ministers will also ensure that 
animal welfare within the industry is not compromised following EU withdrawal.  
 

 
6Report of the Independent Working Group on Snares, Defra, August 2005 
7Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee - Report on the use of snares in Wales, p5, June 2017 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



 

 

 www.RSPCA.cymru 
 www.politicalanimal.wales 

PAGE 4 politicalaffairs@rspca.org.uk 
0300 123 8910 

 

RSPCA Cymru are supportive in the introduction of powers to Welsh Ministers, with the Bill outlining how 
support from Ministers will be provided to those who achieve and promote high standards of animal 
health and welfare, however we are aware that there is currently no obligation set within the Agriculture 
(Wales) Bill to use the powers granted to them within this legislation.  
 
In regards to the Sustainable Farming Scheme, we are also aware how the Agriculture (Wales) Bill in its 
current form references very little to minimum regulatory standards. The creation of National Minimum 
Standards allows more accessibility for the existing framework, and ensures that it is more widely 
understood within the sector, and the current lack of reference runs the risk of no full set of standards 
being in place for the introduction of the SFS in 2025. RSPCA Cymru currently supports the creation of 
National Minimum Standards for agriculture on the basis that the ability to amend standards quickly by 
Welsh Ministers will ultimately provide animal welfare and health benefits within Wales, and it is currently 
assumed that the introduction of these standards would reference previous statutory requirements within 
animal welfare legislation. As a result, we recommend that National Minimum Standards are 
implemented by the time of January 2025 launch of the Sustainable Farming Scheme, in order to ensure 
that standards are in place for its introduction. This would also produce a baseline for higher welfare 
payments to be paid to farmers such as capital costs to cover conversion of buildings eg removal of 
cages for laying hen production or costs to cover differences in production costs in higher welfare 
chicken farming or pig farming.  Wales is rightly proud of its food and animal welfare standards. For 
instance it has the highest percentage of free range laying hen production in Europe. This Bill provides a 
good launch pad to further develop Welsh food and exploit agri food export opportunities.  
 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 55



 

New Sparling House, Holloway Hill, Godalming, Surrey, GU7 1QZ 

T 01483 524 250  E info@league.org.uk  W league.org.uk 

League Against Cruel Sports is a registered charity in England and Wales (no.1095234) and Scotland (no.SC045533). Registered in 

England and Wales as a company, no. 04037610. Registered office: New Sparling House, Holloway Hill, Godalming, Surrey, GU7 1QZ 

 
 

 

 

Consultation response from the League Against Cruel Sports 

 

Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs Committee: Agriculture (Wales) Bill  

 

The League Against Cruel Sports welcomes the opportunity to submit a written paper to the 

Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs Committee, ahead of the planned evidence session on the 

Agriculture (Wales) Bill on 9 November. The League has long called for a full ban on snares in 

Wales and strongly welcomes the inclusion of a ban on the use of these devices featured within 

the proposed legislation. 

 

The League particularly supports the approach that has been taken to introduce an outright ban 

on the use of the devices as opposed to giving Ministers general powers to regulate snares. We 

feel that this is more proportionate given the suffering snares cause to animals. 

 

We welcome the Government’s acknowledgement of the significant animal welfare issues linked 

to the use of snares, the strong public support for a ban and the high level of public engagement 

in the consultation process. We also welcome the Welsh Government’s decision to ensure that 

the use of snares cannot be licenced in Wales – making Wales the first UK nation to take such 

decisive action.  

 

1. Queries in relation to the wording of the snaring ban  

Section 43  

 

Subsection (ba) makes it an offence to set in position ‘any snare, or other cable restraint, which 

is of such a nature and so placed as to be likely to cause bodily injury to any wild animal coming 

into contact with it’. Meanwhile, subsection (bb) makes it an offence to use a snare ‘for the 

purpose of killing or taking any wild animal any snare, or other cable restraint, whether or not of 

such a nature or so placed as aforesaid’. 

 

This mirrors the terminology used in the current provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 

1981 (WCA) which outlaw the use of self-locking snares. However, Sections 11(a) and (aa) of the 

WCA applicable to Scotland and as amended by Schedule 6(10) of the Nature Conservation 

(Scotland) Act cover anyone who ‘sets in position or otherwise uses’ a self-locking snare or any 

other snare calculated to cause unnecessary suffering. 

 

The League is concerned that the wording ‘sets in position’ may not cover all instances of the use 

of a snare, potentially posing a challenge for enforcement. For example, there have been cases 

in which defendants have claimed that snares have been left in situ but not set1. To avoid 

ambiguity and unintended loopholes arising, it would be preferable to amend sections 43(ba) and 

(bb) of the Bill to read ‘sets in position or otherwise uses’. 

 

The League would also welcome clarification as to what, if any, uses of snares the Welsh 

Government intends to remain legal in Wales. Section 11(1)(a) of the WCA as it applies to 

Scotland outlaws the use of self-locking snares, with no qualification as to their likelihood to cause 

suffering or their use for taking or killing an animal. Enforcement of a ban on snaring in Wales 

may be simpler without the latter qualification in particular, due to potential challenges of proving 

intent, unless it is required to avoid unintended consequences. 

 
1 https://www.thetelegraphandargus.co.uk/news/17462776.amp/  

Tudalen y pecyn 56

https://www.thetelegraphandargus.co.uk/news/17462776.amp/


New Sparling House, Holloway Hill, Godalming, Surrey, GU7 1QZ 

T 01483 524 250  E mail@league.org.uk  W league.org.uk 

League Against Cruel Sports is a registered charity in England and Wales (no.1095234) and Scotland (no.SC045533). Registered in 

England and Wales as a company, no. 04037610. Registered office: New Sparling House, Holloway Hill, Godalming, Surrey, GU7 1QZ 

 

As well as considering whether the wording used is as clear as possible, we also urge the Welsh 

Government to continue to ensure that the ban is applicable to all snares, including those branded 

as ‘humane cable restraints’ or similar. Welfare issues with the use of code-compliant snares 

remain, for example as detailed by the recent report A Review of the Use of Snares in the UK 

(Professor Stephen Harris, 2022). To protect animal welfare and ensure the ban functions as 

intended, the ban should apply to all snares and cable restraints as it does in its current format.  

 

Section 44  

 

The explanatory memorandum states that Section 44 of the Bill amends section 11(2) of the WCA 

so that the prohibitions on ‘setting in position any trap or snare, or any electrical device for killing 

or stunning, or any poisonous, poisoned or stupefying substance’ will apply where the use of 

those devices is “likely” – rather than “calculated” – to cause injury to a protected wild animal. 

 

The League supports this change from ‘calculated’ to ‘likely’ as we believe that it will aid in 

enforcement of the snaring ban by setting the evidential burden to a more appropriate level. 

 

However, the amended subsection would apply to ‘any trap other than a glue trap’ in Wales, rather 

than the existing formulation of ‘any trap or snare’. In light of the removal of the word ‘snare’, we 

would welcome clarity as to whether snares are encompassed by the term ‘any trap’, or whether 

the wording of the Bill creates ambiguity in this area. 

 

2. Suggestions the snaring ban could amended at a later date 

Clarity as to whether the current terms of the Agriculture (Wales) Bill could be modified at a later 

date is also needed, as section 46 (2) of the Bill states that Ministers could make regulations to 

‘modify any enactment (whenever enacted or made, and including this Act)’. Section 51 states 

that the word ‘modify’ is to be interpreted as including amending, revoking and repealing. This 

raises the question as to whether regulations could be made in future which directly weaken or 

repeal the snaring ban. The potential for primary legislation to be amended in this way is also 

implied under Section 47(8) which mentions regulations which ‘modify any provision of primary 

legislation’.  

 

This general power to make regulations appears to be explained in the explanatory 

memorandum’s ‘summary of powers to make subordinate legislation’ table as being ‘appropriate 

to ensure, that where amendments to other legislation are found to be necessary, to give full 

effect to this Bill, further primary legislation is not required’. However, we are concerned that the 

powers under Section 46 could be much broader than this in allowing regulations which create 

exceptions and/or permit snares to be used in certain circumstances – something the League 

would be strongly against. It is therefore important that we achieve clarity on this so that 

stakeholders such as ourselves can fully assess its potential implications.  

 

3. No references to the sale, manufacture and possession of snares 

While a ban on the use of snares is much welcome, we are concerned that these traps will 

continue to pose a threat to animals if the possession, sale and manufacture of them is not also 

covered by the Agriculture (Wales) Bill. In December 2020, the Welsh Government launched a 

consultation on the Agriculture (Wales) White Paper which suggested that legislation could be 

amended ‘to increase the control over their manufacture, sale and use’. The League was strongly 

supportive of this proposal within its consultation response and is now seeking clarity on why 

controls on the manufacture and sale of snares are not being considered at this stage.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 57



New Sparling House, Holloway Hill, Godalming, Surrey, GU7 1QZ 

T 01483 524 250  E mail@league.org.uk  W league.org.uk 

League Against Cruel Sports is a registered charity in England and Wales (no.1095234) and Scotland (no.SC045533). Registered in 

England and Wales as a company, no. 04037610. Registered office: New Sparling House, Holloway Hill, Godalming, Surrey, GU7 1QZ 

The White Paper consultation document also noted that the Welsh Government has stated that a 

ban on both the sale and use of snares would be sought if evidence showed that the voluntary 

Code of Best Practice on the use of snares in fox control was not being adhered to. While it was 

stated in the consultation that ‘regular meetings and communications with snare-user groups have 

failed to provide sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the Code is being adhered to across 

Wales’, there is no reference to prohibiting the sale of snares within the recently published 

Agriculture (Wales) Bill.  

 

As it stands, it is unclear as to whether this is due the introduction of the Internal Market Act 2020 

which seeks to prevent internal trade barriers among the four UK nations. While the Internal 

Market Act may affect the ability of legislation on the sale of snares to be enforced, it is currently 

unclear as to whether other options have been explored. It is worth noting in this context that the 

Welsh Government has described the Act as ‘an unwarranted attack on devolution and the right 

of the Senedd to legislate without interference in areas devolved to Wales’. 

 

For example, if including a ban on snares within the proposed legislation would not be feasible 

due to an inability for it to be implemented, could Ministers instead be granted the power to 

regulate the sale of snares? This would allow regulations to be brought forward at a later date. 

Alternatively, a ban on the sale of snares in Wales could be potentially included within the 

Agriculture (Wales) Bill, with commencement of this provision taking place at a later date if and 

when issues relevant to the loss of devolved powers are resolved. 

 

We strongly believe that the sale and manufacture of snares should be addressed in order to 

reduce the immediate availability of these devices in Wales and assist with compliance with the 

proposed ban on the use of snares.  

 

If the use of snares is banned in Wales due to their cruelty and the suffering they cause, making, 

selling and potentially exporting tools of such cruelty should not be permitted either. It is our view 

that there would be no good reason to make snares in Wales when their use is outlawed, nor 

should it be possible to profit from or trade in these cruel traps. Removing the avenues for the 

supply of snares, and preventing the potential for their use at an earlier stage, could assist with 

ensuring that the ban on snares protects animals from the suffering they cause, provide additional 

enforcement tools and ensure that Wales continues to lead by example. Under Section 11(3) of 

the WCA as it applies to Scotland, the sale of self-locking snares is an offence. 

 

There is also currently no reference to prohibiting the possession of snares included in the 

Agriculture (Wales) Bill. The majority of snares are used on private land and are left 

unaccompanied for hours at a time, which could make proving who has used them a challenge. 

Addressing the possession of snares without reasonable excuse within the Bill could assist with 

the enforcement of a ban on their use in such circumstances, by enabling prosecution of those 

who possess them without legitimate reason, as with prescribed poisons under the WCA. It would 

also provide additional opportunities to remove snares from circulation which would otherwise be 

used to commit an offence. Under Section 11(3) of the WCA as it applies to Scotland, the 

possession of self-locking snares without reasonable excuse is an offence. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 58



20/10/2022 

Simon Wild, National Anti Snaring Campaign        www.antisnaring.org.uk   

Summary of key points to support oral evidence for 9th Nov. 2022 meeting of 
the Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs Scrutiny Committee 

Agricultural (Wales) Bill:    Snaring 

The National Anti Snaring Campaign was started in 1992 and we created the first dedicated 
website when no other organisation was exposing the cruelty of snares.  We have 30 years 
of investigating and receiving snaring reports from around the UK.   In 2016 we attended the 
Senedd in Cardiff to give oral evidence to the Environment Committee on snaring.  Since 
then, we have presented the Senedd members with contemporary examples of snaring 
abuses (see material at end of summary) and cruelty taking place in Wales where the Code 
of Practice has failed. 

Call for Evidence: 

DEFRA announced last year that they would have a “Call for evidence on snaring” which 
they would launch this year.  In anticipation of this, we commissioned Professor Stephen 
Harris to write ‘A Review of The Use of Snares In the UK’ and this was published in April 
2022.  This has analysed all the available data on snaring in the UK. 

Breakaway snare laboratory tests: 

The shooting lobby have recognised that snares are harmful and indiscriminate so their fall-
back position has been to promote a ‘breakaway snare’ designed to allow a badger to 
escape from a fox snare.  We found such a snare impossible to break even with gloved 
hands due to the force required and pain involved, so in early 2022 we commissioned TTI 
Laboratories to test the two current breakaway snares that are marketed.  When replicating 
the circumference of a badger’s neck and doing direct pull there was a force of 74kg to 

Lara Date
  
Second Clerk, 
Economy, Trade 
and Rural Affairs 
Committee 
Welsh Parliament 

Tudalen y pecyn 59

http://www.antisnaring.org.uk/


break the weak link on one type, and just under 70kg on another.  That is approximately 11 
stone of force when a badger weighs about 2 stone, and all falling on 2mm of wire width 
around the animal’s neck, chest or abdomen.  The cheese wire effect naturally causes injury 
and untold pain.  Other dynamic forces and twisting are also at work, often bypassing any 
stop so the snare can lock whether a fox or badger is struggling. 

Key facts of Professor Harris’s snaring review are: 

Fox numbers have declined by 44% since 1996, largely due to decline of rabbits by 64% as a 
result of viral hemorrhagic disease, but also due to sarcoptic mange 

97% of snare use is carried out using fox snares, with the majority done by gamekeepers for 
preservation of game-birds for shooting sports.  Around 70% of animal captures in fox 
snares are non-target species, mainly badgers but including significant numbers of brown 
hares, some deer, but also domestic pets and feral cats.  The use of breakaway snares to 
circumvent the issue of non-target badger capture only leads to approximately 30% 
escaping, and there is no data on what happens to those who have had to use extreme 
force to escape.  However, there is data to show that those not escaping do suffer traumatic 
injury even when the snares are set and inspected to the letter of the code of practice.  The 
data also shows mortality and injury of non-target hares as well as predation – the latter 
being a cause of great terror and pain prior to death. 

An example in the DEFRA funded report of 2012 using a Game and Wildlife Conservation 
employee gives an example of what the best snare setters can achieve.  Less skilled 
operators will have a worse outcome: 

Page 37 RHC/page 38 LHC of Snare Review 

 

. ‘The Defra-funded study used a technician fully competent in the use of snares 
because this focuses on the device as operated according to best practice (because 
it is difficult and unethical to emulate bad practice). In 211 snare nights in familiar 
areas, this technician caught 18 animals: 3 foxes, 13 hares, and 2 badgers. Five 
hares, 2 badgers and 1 fox escaped: 1 fox and 1 badger escaped with the snare 
attached. Three hares were severely injured/dead and 2 hares were predated. Both 
foxes that were held had haemorrhages on their necks extending into the deeper 
muscle [1]. Although the snares were placed so as to avoid entanglement with fences 
or woody shrubs, three of the snares were entangled with non-woody vegetation [1]. 
Assuming that the animals that escaped with the snare attached suffered significant 
adverse welfare impacts, 7/18 captures (39%) were severely injured, dead or 
predated; just 2 target species (11% of captures) were held and killed [1]. Since this 
operator was highly experienced, and the snares were operated according to best 
practice, it is reasonable to assume that the general level of operator competence is 
lower;’ 

   -------------------------------------------------- 

Tudalen y pecyn 60



The most comprehensive assessment to date was by an international panel of 20 experts: they 
summarised the principles for ethical wildlife control in 7 questions which should be asked in 
sequence when making decisions about human-wildlife conflict:  

• Can the problem be mitigated by changing human behaviour? 

• Are the harms serious enough to warrant wildlife control? 

• Is the desired outcome clear and achievable, and will it be monitored? 

• Does the proposed method carry the least animal welfare cost and to the fewest animals? 

• Have community values been considered alongside scientific, technical, and practical 
information? 

• Is the control action part of a systematic, long-term management program? 

• Are the decisions warranted by the specifics of the situation rather than negative labels 
applied to the animals? 
 
Snaring does not meet any of these ethical principles 

 

  

Alternatives to snares: 

The decline in fox numbers comes at a time when night vision use by gamekeepers has 
improved making humane control of foxes much easier.  The key risk for game bird 
preservation is when the poults are in the release pen, and the use of double strand electric 
fencing correctly installed minimises any risk.  The use of fox snares is at very best a minor 
component of fox ‘control’ techniques. 

Rabbits 

Largely due to viral hemorrhagic disease rabbit numbers declined in England by 64% 
since 1996.   

 There are significant welfare issues associated with snaring rabbits: a high proportion of 
captured rabbits are strangled. Studies on rabbits placed in snares by the Central 
Science laboratory show that, despite a protracted death and a range of behavioural 
issues indicative of high levels of stress, physical assessment of any injuries are 
inadequate to assess the welfare issues associated with the use of snares.  

Predators prey on rabbits captured in snares; the distress calls made by snared rabbits 
attract predators.  

Professional rabbit snarers when surveyed for the DEFRA study published in 2012 reported 
expecting to find 30% mortality of rabbits in snares. 

Due to setting of rabbit snares in fields adjoining urban areas, a disproportionate number of 
non-target cats get caught, often leading to death or injury. 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



In the UK only about 3% of snaring is for rabbits and of those land holding doing rabbit 
control, only about 3% are using snares.  Therefore, shooting or small cage traps form 
the vast majority of control methods.  

Professor Harris draws a conclusion that: 

‘The use of snares in the UK does not meet acceptable standards of animal welfare or any of 
the principles for ethical wildlife control established by a committee of international experts. 
Some methods used to kill wild animals have such extreme effects on their welfare that, 
regardless of the potential benefits, their use is never justified: snaring is such a method. All 
the available data show that the only way to stop extremely high levels of non-target 
capture, illegal use and misuse of snares, address animal welfare concerns, and recognise 
that wild animals are sentient beings, is to prohibit the use of snares in the UK.’ 

 

The shooting lobby are rebranding snares as ‘Cable Restraints’, even though they are clearly killing, 
not restraining devices, so any legislation needs to worded to prevent loopholes, and expressly:    
Ban on the manufacture, sale or use of snares. 

A snare should be defined for the purposes of legislation as: 

'Any wire or other loop designed to catch an animal by its neck, foot or any  
other part of its body.' 
 

    ---------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 62



Cat caught in snare in Wales, April 2019 
  

 

A cat owner whose pet went missing for two days has spoken of her shock at finding the 
animal trapped in a wire snare normally set to catch badgers or foxes.  Kate Lee, of 
Talsarn, said her pet cat Gem was only spared a lingering death after her distraught 
children came across her while carrying out a frantic search two fields away from their 
smallholding.   “Gem had last been seen at around 5pm on the Sunday and didn’t come 
home that night,” she told the Cambrian News.  “She then didn’t turn up for breakfast the 
next morning which was very unusual.“When she still hadn’t turned up the following 
day we went walking down the road to check whether she’d been run over and also 
looked in vehicles and outbuildings in case she’d been locked in.“We have 23 acres here 
and it was while going round our fields that the kids found her in the snare and we 
eventually got her out by using a pair of wire cutters.“Poor Gem was very dehydrated 
and while she let us carry her home she wouldn’t let us touch her after that because she 
was so sore.“She also couldn’t walk properly with her hind legs and didn’t have 
anything to eat for 24 hours. Even now, a few days later, she’s very tender around the 
middle.“While I understand why people set these traps I think they should be set more 
responsibly and checked every 24 hours.  “When we went back to the snare four days 
later it was still the same as when we had released Gem which means it hadn’t been 
checked in all that time.“I dread to think what would have happened if the kids hadn’t 
found her – she would still be out there.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



BBC Wales, March 2020 showed David Smede, snaring foxes in Pembrokeshire National 
Park and selling the pelts to the European fur trade 

 

   ------------------------------------------------------ 

8 Jan. 2020 Fox snared near Cardiff 

  

        (note snare is old AB type) 

Vale Wildlife Hospital   post:  RSPCA rescued a severely injured fox from a snare:   The 
fox had this snare wrapped around his hind limbs and abdomen – both back legs were 
very swollen with significant bruising and will need careful monitoring for tissue 
breakdown, a risk associated with this type of injury.    

Tudalen y pecyn 64



 

Badger found heavily entangled in snare 
and barbed wire in Lampeter 

Posted on 13/03/2018 by Gillian Hillan 
A female badger has died after being found heavily entangled in a snare and barbed wire. 

The adult female badger was found in the Lampeter area and was believed to have been trapped 
for a few days. 

RSPCA animal collection officer (ACO) Ellie 
West said: “The badger was very tangled up at the bottom of some fencing. There was no way 
the badger could have escaped, but luckily I was able to cut all wire and take the badger 
immediately to an independent vets. 

“The badger was sedated and during the examination the vet found that the snare had become 
totally embedded into her stomach. There was infection and was very swollen and sore and it is 
likely that the badger had been there for at least three days. 

“Sadly, to prevent further suffering the vet decided that the kindest thing to do was to put the 
badger to sleep. 

“This incident really does highlight the cruel and indiscriminate nature of snares.” 

The device was not a self-locking snare, which are illegal, but it was not set in accordance with 
the Welsh Government’s Code of Practice regarding snare use.” 

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 65

https://news.rspca.org.uk/2018/03/13/badger-found-heavily-entangled-in-snare-and-barbed-wire-in-lampeter/
https://news.rspca.org.uk/author/gillian-robertsrspca-org-uk/


4 March 2021 
 
 A Silver Fox that must once have been a pet and had been living wild in Barry South 
Wales has had to have part of its leg removed after snares were set by its earth at 
church/building site near the Waterfront Medical Center Barry, South Wales. 
She was caught in the Barry, Wales at the Asda superstore 
 
The RSPCA has removed the snares and police are also investigating. The rescuers and 
vet believe the injuries are the result of trying to escape from the snare which the 
RSPCA said was twisted with hair matching the fox 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 66



Ruabon Mountains April 21 

We can reveal snares litter the mountains in north Wales, with dozens of rotting corpses 
to lure foxes and other wildlife. 

 

 

Simon Wild 

National Anti Snaring Campaign 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



 

 

BVA Welsh Branch written response to the Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs 
Committee call for evidence on the Agriculture (Wales) Bill 
 
1. The British Veterinary Association (BVA) is the national representative body for the 

veterinary profession in the United Kingdom. With over 19,000 members, our primary aim 
is to represent, support and champion the interests of the United Kingdom’s veterinary 
profession. We, therefore, take a keen interest in all issues affecting the profession, 
including animal health and welfare, public health, regulatory issues, and employment 
matters.  

2. BVA Welsh Branch represents members in Wales, bringing together representatives of 
specialist and territorial divisions, government, academic institutions, and research 
organisations in Wales. The branch advises BVA on the consensus view of members in 
Wales on Welsh and UK issues.  

3. We welcome the opportunity to respond to the Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs 
Committee call for evidence on the proposed Agriculture (Wales) Bill. We broadly support 
the proposed bill and welcome the increased emphasis on protecting Animal Health and 
Welfare from earlier drafts of the Bill. 

4. Our key points are: 
• Animal health and welfare must be an integral part of the new regulatory framework, and 

we are pleased to see the paper specifically states that regulatory reforms will include 
improvements to animal health and welfare.  

• It is important that any new regulations do not reduce standards and take care to avoid any 
loopholes which may result in lower standards of animal health and welfare. As animal 
health and welfare specialists and advocates from farm to fork, veterinary surgeons should 
be involved in the development of the National Minimum Standards, to ensure they 
minimise the risk of welfare harms and ensure animal health and welfare is properly 
protected.  

• To ensure the updated regulations can have an impact on the ground, it will be essential 
that they are clearly communicated and understood. Our high animal health and animal 
welfare standards rely on effective communication between farmers, their own vets and 
government vets, for example to enable effective disease surveillance to be carried out. 
The veterinary profession is key to ensuring there is good widespread understanding of the 
minimum standards. 

• We support the Sustainable Land Management approach as a means to incentivise public 
goods, and the outcomes-based approach that will underpin the SLM scheme. However, 
there needs to be more clarity on how Animal Health and Welfare will be supported beyond 
the legal baseline. We accept that the scheme is intended to improve animal health and 
welfare standards, but the weight given to animal health and welfare within the framework 
is insufficient given the high proportion of livestock farming in Wales. 

• The role of the veterinary surgeon must be properly recognised. Vets are regarded as the 
most influential advisors to farmers within the decision-making process. They should be 
included within the development of the standards and monitoring to reflect this role as 
experts on animal health and welfare, and as trusted advisors on animal health and welfare 
planning, husbandry, biosecurity, biocontainment and preventative medicine. 

• We recognise that it may be necessary to control wildlife where there is a negative impact 
on human and animal health, food, agriculture, property or the environment. If a problem is 
identified, we support the responsible use of the most humane control methods available, 
which first requires consideration of whether it is necessary to control pests at all. Before 
lethal control is considered, prevention methods or deterrents should be implemented, and 

Tudalen y pecyn 68



1 November 2022 (Page 2 of 2) 

finally, if lethal control of pests is considered necessary, methods that minimise suffering, 
fear and pain should be used. Both glue traps and snares significantly compromise animal 
welfare for the period during which animals are trapped, and there are welfare concerns 
associated with methods of killing of trapped animals. They are also indiscriminate and may 
capture wild and domestic species for which their use is not intended, resulting in death or 
significant injury to these animals. In our policy positions on the use and sales of snares 
and on glue traps we call for outright bans on the use and sale of these devices. We 
therefore support the proposal for a power to enable increased controls covering the 
manufacture, sale and use of snares and glue traps.  
 

5. Achieving the minimum standards should not be considered an aspiration for farmed 
animals. The ambition should be to encourage the highest standards and raise the bar at 
every level. Providing incentives and rewards for high achievers is important to continue 
raising standards and encourage improvements at all levels. This principle has shown to 
be effective in Farming Connect “champion” demonstration farms. A critical component in 
the success of this knowledge transfer programme is its role of sharing best practice and 
cascading information to the wider industry through a programme of high-profile 
demonstration site events and promotional tools.  

6. As agricultural policy in the UK is devolved, administrations have been able to shape 
agricultural policy to the needs of their respective jurisdictions. At the same time, the EU 
has ensured a degree of coherence to agricultural policy amongst all four administrations. 
Brexit presents an opportunity to tailor agricultural policy to suit the countries of the UK, 
however coordination and oversight on matters of animal health and welfare is crucial. 
There will therefore need to be consideration where decisions on agricultural policy are 
taken, and how best to coordinate efforts across the nations of the UK.  

7. To facilitate this, we would welcome the establishment of a UK wide body to oversee and 
coordinate animal health and welfare policy across the four administrations of the UK and 
facilitate partnership working between industry and government to tackle endemic disease 
and animal health and welfare challenges. 

8. Government should also promote the benefits of properly valuing quality animal-derived 
products, where quality encompasses good animal health and welfare, food safety, 
environmental protection and fair returns for producers.   

9. We would welcome the opportunity to work closely with the Welsh Government to expand 
upon these proposals. 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 69

https://www.bva.co.uk/take-action/our-policies/snaring/
https://www.bva.co.uk/take-action/our-policies/use-and-sale-of-rodent-glue-traps/


 

 

 

 

 

Countryside Alliance Wales  

Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs Committee evidence session 
 

The Countryside Alliance are pleased to have the opportunity to give evidence on 
the use of snares in fox control and oppose an outright ban on the use of snares in 
fox control as proposed by Welsh Government. 

 

We are deeply concerned that this proposal has been driven by an animal rights 
agenda and has not taken into consideration the implications that such a ban would 
have on biodiversity, livelihoods, the rural economy, and endangered species. It is 
also lacking in evidence, particularly scientific evidence which is available, 
particularly from the Game and Wildlife Conservation Trust.  

We are equally concerned that there has been miss-information distributed on the 
use of snares for a number of years, which we have robustly challenged. An 
example would be a petition set out by the League Against Cruel Sports which was 
disingenuous as proven in the attached documents.    

The Welsh Government on more than one occasion, has claimed that there are no 
alternative options to banning snares.  We strongly disagree and feel that these 
options have been largely ignored and have not been explored by Welsh 
Government. A number of meetings have been attempted with the agreement of 
Ministers yet nothing has come to fruition.  

The Countryside Alliance along with other stakeholders and interested parties were 
part of Welsh Governments working group on snares which developed the current 
code of practice and continued to meet on a regular basis. However, the last meeting 
that Welsh Government hosted was in 2018 and we have not been invited to meet 
since. The minutes of that meeting demonstrate a commitment from our sector to 
explore further options for the training of setting code complaint snares, the 
distribution of knowledge for best practice and indeed, it was our sector who called 
on Welsh Government to ban non code compliant snares during that meeting.    

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 70

Eitem 4



We urge the committee and Welsh Government to consider the very real alternative 
to non code complaint snares and to adopt a humane cable restraint that complies 
fully with the Agreement on International Humane Trapping Standards (AIHTS), the 
highest possible standard by which you can measure too. (The Agreement, an 
international agreement between the EU, Canada and Russia, is designed to 
establish international standards of humane trapping, improve communication and 
cooperation between the parties for the implementation and development of those 
standards.) 

We feel strongly that the evidence presented by the Game and Wildlife Conservation 
Trust should be given consideration and would also suggest that they have the 
opportunity to give oral evidence and thus be acceptably scrutinised.  

 

Rachel Evans 
Countryside Alliance  
rachel-evans@countryside-alliance.org  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 71

mailto:rachel-evans@countryside-alliance.org


 

                                       
  
 
Minister for Environment and Rural Affairs 
Welsh Government 
5th Floor 
Ty Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
CF991NA 
 
7th of September 2016 
 
 
Dear Cabinet Secretary, Lesley Griffiths 
 
We write collectively with regards to the current petition lodged at the National Assembly for Wales 
by the League Against Cruel Sports (LACS) calling for a ban on the use of snares in Wales.  For 
reasons as outlined below, we call for the petition to be removed immediately from the Petitioning 
process of the National Assembly for Wales 
 
The figures put forward within the petition by LACS are completely incorrect and disingenuous.  The 
petition states that “In Wales, some 370,000 animals are snared every year. That’s more than 1,000 
a day”.  
 
In suggesting that 370,000 mammals are caught in fox snares each year in Wales, the League Against  
Cruel Sports (LACS) are misrepresenting statistics from the 2012 DEFRA report Determining the 
Extent of Use and Humaneness of Snares in England and Wales. It appears that they have taken the 
capture rates from the single operator who carried out the humaneness testing work, and multiplied 
these by the estimated number of snares being used in Wales at any one time from the “extent of 
use” section of the report. 
 
Multiplying numbers in this way is not scientifically valid. It fails, in particular, to take into account 
that the one operator was completely atypical, with a catch rate an order of magnitude higher than 
most snare users, and that it reflects data generated in one location with specific densities of target 
and non-target species that simply cannot be generalised across the whole of Wales. 
 
As a consequence of these incorrect calculations LACS’s petition suggests that every year snares are 
catching more than the total pre-breeding populations of foxes, badgers and hares in Wales 
(according to the seminal work on mammal populations in the UK, A Review of British Mammals: 
Population Estimates and Conservation Status of British Mammals other than Cetaceans, Harris et 
al., 1995*. Since the publication of this work a study has indicated that populations of hare and fox 
have declined from Harris et al.’s estimates). This is clearly an impossible situation, further 
highlighting the error in the statistics being used to promote this petition.   
 
We are also very concerned that LACS are making quite untrue assertions about the humaneness of 
the snares themselves. Their suggestion that the new code compliant snares are “more likely to 

Tudalen y pecyn 72



cause injury or death” is also lacking in any scientific evidence and thus is completely disingenuous. 
The work for the DEFRA report that they ‘quote’ from showed that code compliant snares when 
properly operated meet the Agreement on International Humane Trapping Standards (AIHTS). 
Indeed there was no evidence of significant snare related injury to a single animal in the Home Office 
regulated humaneness testing work.  This applied to the non-target animals which self-released 
(approximately half of the ‘captures’), those which were released by the operator, and the target 
animals which were despatched and subject to post-mortem examination by independent vets. 
 
On the basis of the incorrect figures stated in the above mentioned petition we call for the petition 
to be removed immediately from the Petitioning process of the National Assembly for Wales. The 
League Against Cruel Sports would then have the opportunity to re-present a petition without these 
misleading claims. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Rachel Evans                           Mike Swann      Charles Nodder 
  Director for Wales           Head of Education and Wales Advisor                      Political Advisor 
Countryside Alliance          Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust             National Gamekeepers Organisation 
 
 
* http://jncc.defra.gov.uk/pdf/pub03_areviewofbritishmammalsall.pdf 
 
Distribution list to date: 
Petitions Committee 
Simon Thomas AM 
Paul Davies AM 
Neil Hamilton AM 
 
 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 73

http://jncc.defra.gov.uk/pdf/pub03_areviewofbritishmammalsall.pdf


 

 

 

Dear Committee Members 

RE: Response to the evidence session to the Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs 
Committee on Wednesday the 30th of November 2016 from the Countryside Alliance, and the Game 
and Wildlife Conservation Trust.  To include our response to the letter received by the League 
Against Cruel Sports dated 5th of December 2016. 

Many thanks for the opportunity to attend the evidence session on the use of snares in Wales on the 
30th of November 2016.  

Firstly, it is important to note that the figure quoted by Vicky Howells AM of 1.7 million mammals 
snared every year in England and Wales is in fact the League Against Cruel Sports figure and is 
nowhere to be found in the DEFRA report. Once again, we emphasise that this calculation is wholly 
inaccurate and is a miss representation of scientific research.  

It is pleasing to see that in the letter dated the 5th of December 2016 to the committee that the 
League wholeheartedly admit and even set out the methodology of their miss use of data . The 
process is exactly as we analysed and is therefore not a true account of the number of mammals 
snared every year in Wales. A further example of how ridiculous their figures are, is that if this were 
true, then the whole of the mammal population would be wiped out in 18 weeks. 

I also note that they claim that their figures are not challenged by DEFRA. This is of course for DEFRA 
to comment upon, however we are not surprised in the slightest that DEFRA have not commented 
on such a bizarre manipulation of scientific research.  

We would welcome further engagement with the committee on this issue and the door is wide open 
for any practical or written information we can provide.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

Rachel Evans 
Director for Wales 
Countryside Alliance  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 74



Countryside Alliance Briefing Note – Snares 
December 2021 

Page 1 of 6 
 

COUNTRYSIDE ALLIANCE BRIEFING NOTE 
 
SNARES 
 
GENERAL BRIEF 
 
DECEMBER 2021 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key points 
  

• The use of snares is an important tool in wildlife management, which benefits 
conservation and a range of economic activities from shooting and agriculture 
to forestry and eco-tourism. 
 

• There is often no practical and effective replacement for snaring at crucial times 
of the year, particularly during spring and summer. 

 
• Well-designed snares, used properly, are a humane and effective form of fox 

control. They are a restraining, rather than killing, device. We advocate strongly 
the use of code complaint snares.  

 
• It has been illegal to use self-locking snares throughout the UK since 1981 and 

there is already extensive legislation in place relating to the use of free-running 
snares. 

 
• Defra commissioned research, published in 2012, identified how snaring could 

be improved through snare design and operating practices. 
 

• The Countryside Alliance, with other sector groups including the NFU, FUW, the 
British Association for Shooting and Conservation, The National Gamekeepers 
Organisation and the Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust, were part of the Welsh 
Governments working group which published a thoroughly revised code in 
2015. Other organisations opposed to snares were also part of that group 
singing off the code.   

 
Importance of Snaring 

The use of snares is an important tool in wildlife management, deployed by gamekeepers, 
farmers and land managers  as an effective way of catching foxes. Modern snares are a 
restraining, rather than killing, device and research has shown that well-designed snares are 
humane and effective.  

Without snares, foxes would be an increased threat to vulnerable populations of wildlife, 
biodiversity and habitat conservation. They would also cause significantly greater damage to 
a diverse range of economic activities including shooting, agriculture, forestry and eco-
tourism, which all rely on a managed countryside. It is necessary for land owners/occupiers to 
control pest species such as foxes which, if uncontrolled, would cause significant damage. 
The Game and Wildlife Conservation Trust (GWCT) has highlighted that: 

“Foxes kill young lambs, piglets reared outdoors, and free range and domestic poultry. 
Foxes also prey on vulnerable wild ground-nesting birds like black grouse, partridge, 
lapwing, curlew and stone curlew, and brown hare. Several of these are species of 
conservation concern, others are game species; some are both… 

Tudalen y pecyn 75



Countryside Alliance Briefing Note – Snares 
December 2021 

Page 2 of 6 
 

“There are several methods to control foxes but none of them are effective in all 
circumstances. One method widely used for foxes is snaring. Snares are particularly 
effective for foxes in places and at times of the year when rifle shooting is not possible 
because of dense cover but when fox control may be critical for wild prey.” (GWCT, 
Recommendations on Fox Snares).  

To protect species that are particularly vulnerable to fox predation, such as lambs and ground-
nesting birds, fox control is essential during the spring and summer breeding season. 
However, in spring and summer shooting often becomes impractical because of the growth of 
vegetation cover and arable crops. Flushing-out foxes from underground with the use of a dog 
is only permitted to protect gamebirds or wild birds kept or preserved for the purpose of being 
shot, and not livestock or other wild birds including many rare or endangered species. 
Shooting is also not always safe in certain places such as near livestock, in the vicinity of 
urban areas, or close to public footpaths and other rights of way.  
 
Many important conservation projects use them to help control foxes. These include the ten-
year study to recover Langholm Moor, which was funded by Buccleuch Estates, Scottish 
Natural Heritage, the Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust, the RSPB and Natural England. 
 
The importance of legal snaring has been recognised by successive governments. The 
following statement was made by Barry Gardiner MP, then Parliamentary Under Secretary of 
State for Defra, on 28 November 2006: 

“The Government consider that, where there is a need for wildlife management, the 
proper use of snares is one of a range of control methods.  Used according to best 
practice, snares can be an effective and practical means of wildlife management and 
are needed where other forms of pest control are ineffective or impractical.  In these 
circumstances, snares restrain rather than kill and may prove to be more humane than 
other methods. If snares were to be banned entirely it may encourage the use of more 
dangerous and illegal alternatives such as poisons” (28 Nov 2006: Column 495W, PQ 
104525).   

Subsequently the then Secretary of State for Defra, Thérèse Coffey, wrote in her ministerial 
foreword to the 2016 Code of Practice: 

“At crucial times of the year – particularly spring and summer – vegetative cover renders 
other measures very impractical, making the unique effectiveness of modern snares 
invaluable. When practised to a high standard, and with adherence to the law, snaring 
can provide land and wildlife managers with an effective means to restrain target animals 
before they can be humanely managed.” 

Snares can occasionally trap non-target species, which makes compliance with legislation and 
use of best practice essential. The vast majority of operators do comply with best practice and 
unintended captures are limited, but extensive research has been undertaken to improve the 
design of snares to prevent injury and capture of non-target species.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 76

http://www.gwct.org.uk/policy/position-statements/recommendations-on-fox-snares/
http://www.gwct.org.uk/policy/position-statements/recommendations-on-fox-snares/


Countryside Alliance Briefing Note – Snares 
December 2021 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Humaneness of Snaring  

Self-locking snares, which are designed to kill an animal caught in them, have been illegal in 
the UK since 1981. Free-running snares, which are a cable restraint designed only to hold an 
animal until it can be humanely despatched, can be used legally on account of their 
effectiveness and humaneness. Animals held in these snares are protected from unnecessary 
suffering under the Animal Welfare Act 2006, and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 also 
imposes a legal obligation to check a set snare at least once a day at intervals of no more 
than 24 hours.  
 
Snares are a unique method of control as they catch only when the animal is completely 
unaware of their presence. According to research from the Game and Wildlife Conservation 
Trust (GWCT):  
 

“Foxes are highly ‘neophobic’ - they have a tendency to avoid anything new. A fox 
which detects a snare will avoid it. It may not be unduly alarmed, but it is unlikely ever 
to be caught in that particular snare set… Foxes that have ‘spotted’ a snare can still 
be caught in another snare which has not been detected. Indeed it’s possible to catch 
foxes in snares several times over, as we have found when catching foxes for radio-
tagging… 

 
“The action of a snare is not as alien to a fox as one might imagine: being snagged by 
brambles is probably an everyday experience. The fox just backs off, then carries on. 
We have watched a fox do exactly this when a snare drew up round its nose. It was 
clearly not alarmed, and was properly caught the next day after the snare was re-set 
a metre further along the run” (GWCT, Fox Snares, 2012). 

 
This evidence formed part of the Defra commissioned research which reported in 2012. It 
identified how snaring can be improved through operating practices and snare design and this 
should now be used as the basis for a revised Code of Practice in England as has been done 
in Wales.  
 
Many new snares already take account of the research that was carried out by the GWCT 
which identified how the use of snares can be improved through snare design and operating 
practices. GWCT research led to the development of the new DBsnare, which is compliant 
with the national codes of practice. One of its main features is the use of a break away clip 
that has been designed to release badgers, hares and deer but still hold foxes. There are also 
two swivels, one at the anchor and one half way along which allow the fox to twist and spin 
without kinking the wire. The sophisticated loop closure, known as a Relax-a-lock, moves 
along the wire smoothly when the fox runs through and results in an instant catch.  Once the 
fox is caught, the Relax-a-lock grips tightly enough to hold snug around the neck but will give 
once the fox relaxes, ensuring it remains unharmed until humanely despatched.  
 
The DBsnare has been trialled by professional gamekeepers to a total of 120,000 hours of 
snares being set, more than any other fox trap in the world. Code-compliant snares are also 
available from other suppliers including Collins Nets and Fourteenacre. 
 
Existing Legislation 
 
There is already extensive legislation relating to the use of snares which is designed to 
balance genuine welfare concerns with the need for wildlife management. 
 
It has been illegal to use self-locking snares in all parts of the UK since the introduction of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and the Wildlife Order (Northern Ireland) 1985. Land 

Tudalen y pecyn 77

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/45/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/69
https://www.gwct.org.uk/media/198013/fox_snaring_guidelines_2012lr_2.pdf
http://www.perdixwildlifesupplies.co.uk/product/dbsnare/
https://collinsnets.co.uk/product/code-compliant-fox-snare-each
https://www.fourteenacre.co.uk/shop/complete-fox-snare/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/69
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/nisi/1985/171/contents


Countryside Alliance Briefing Note – Snares 
December 2021 

Page 4 of 6 
 

managers are permitted to use free-running snares on account of their effectiveness and 
humaneness, providing that the relevant legislation, and best practice, is followed.  

In England and Wales the following legislation applies to the use of snares: 
 

• The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 prohibits the use of any trap or snare calculated 
to cause bodily injury to any wild animal and places an obligation on those who use 
snares to check them daily, allowing any non-target species to be released unharmed. 
Defra’s 2012 research found that 84% of snare users were already making every effort 
to avoid the capture of non-target species, and with increasing awareness amongst 
snare users, that is a figure that one can realistically expect to have improved since 
the research was carried out.  

• The Deer Act 1991 prohibits the use of snares to capture any species of deer. 
• The Animal Welfare Act 2006 contains protection for animals subject to human control 

to help prevent unnecessary suffering and would apply to any animal held in a snare. 
• The Humane Trapping Standards Regulations 2019 prohibit the use of snares to trap 

badgers, beavers, pine marten, otters and stoats; these provisions also apply in 
Scotland. 

In Scotland the following legislation applies: 

• The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 replicated the provisions that apply in England 
and Wales, and was subsequently amended by the Nature Conservation (Scotland) 
Act 2004, Schedule 6 in an attempt to tighten the original language (for instance adding 
‘or otherwise uses’ to the prohibition on setting a self-locking snare), and also 
empowers Scottish Ministers to prohibit the use of further types of snare. 

• The Deer (Scotland) Act 1996 prohibits the use of snares to capture deer. 
• The Snares (Scotland) Order 2010 requires snares to be free-running, checked at least 

once every 24 hours, include an effective safety stop and be effectively anchored to 
prevent dragging; they must also not be placed where captured animals are likely to 
be suspended or drown. 

• The Wildlife and Natural Environment (Scotland) Act 2011 introduces new 
requirements relating to training and registration for those setting snares, tagging 
snares with identification numbers and keeping records of snares set. To obtain a tag 
number from Police Scotland, operators must also pass a one-day course run by an 
approved body. The Act also replicates the provisions of The Snares (Scotland) Order 
2010 as noted above, and requires the Scottish Government to undertake a review of 
snaring by 31 December 2016 and every five years thereafter. The most recent review 
concluded in December 2021. 

The Code of best practice on the use of snares for fox control in Wales (2015) is widely 
promulgated by sporting associations and by those institutions, such as land-based training 
colleges, which are involved in the education and training of land managers. It was updated 
to take account of the 2012 Defra funded research from the initial 2005 England edition. 

Following the UK’s withdrawal from the European Union in 2019, the Government re-
implemented in UK regulations the Agreement on International Humane Trapping Standards 
(AIHTS), an international agreement between the EU, Canada and Russia, through The 
Humane Trapping Standards Regulations 2019. The Agreement is designed to establish 
international standards of humane trapping, improve communication and cooperation between 
the parties for the implementation and development of those standards. Although fox trapping 
is not subject to AIHTS, both the Game and Wildlife Conservation Trust (GWCT) and Defra 
research has indicated that a Code of Practice compliant snare, operated according to best 
practice, passed AIHTS requirements for humanness and GWCT research indicated such a 
snare would surpass the requirements in relation to non-target species. 

Tudalen y pecyn 78

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/69
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1991/54/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/45/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/22/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1981/69
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2004/6/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2004/6/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/58/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2010/8/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2011/6/contents/enacted
https://www.gwct.org.uk/media/680075/Snaring-Best-Practice-Booklet.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/22/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/22/contents/made


Countryside Alliance Briefing Note – Snares 
December 2021 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
A complete ban on the use of snares, requiring new legislation, is unnecessary and would not 
be in the interests of land managers, wildlife, or sustainable biodiversity.    
 
Codes of Practice 
 
In 2005 Defra published an initial Code of Practice on the use of snares in fox and rabbit 
control (2005) which was based on the Report from the Independent Working Group on 
Snares (IWGS). The Code made those using snares aware of their responsibilities under the 
law and provided advice on good practice. 
 
In 2008 Defra commissioned the Food and Environment Research Agency (FERA) and the 
Game and Wildlife Conservation Trust (GWCT) to undertake a study into Determining the 
Extent of Use and Humaneness of Snares in England and Wales which was published in 
March 2012. The Final Report made recommendations for amendments to the Code to help 
improve target specificity and improve animal welfare standards. The Coalition Government 
did not implement the recommendations of the 2012 Final Report, despite calls from a wide 
range of stakeholders, including the Countryside Alliance, to include them in a revised Code 
of Practice.  
 
Scotland’s code of practice, Snaring in Scotland: A practitioners’ guide, is in its fourth edition 
and dates from December 2012. Endorsed by the Scottish Government and a range of sector 
bodies including the Scottish Countryside Alliance and the GWCT, it details the legislative 
requirements and provides guidance for the setting of fox and rabbit snares, including a 
diagram of a code-compliant fox snare. 
 
In September 2015, the Welsh Government published a new Code of Best Practice on the 
Use of Snares in Fox Control based on the recommendations provided in the 2012 Final 
Report, which the Countryside Alliance welcomed. The new Code helped improved animal 
welfare standards in Wales and reduce the inadvertent capture of non-target species and 
domestic animals, whilst allowing snaring to continue as an essential method for controlling 
foxes to protect livestock and wildlife. In announcing the Code, Rebecca Evans AM (Labour), 
the Deputy Minister for Farming and Food at Welsh Assembly, said: 
 

“I hope this action will help improve snare operator practice by providing clear and 
practicable advice and how to comply with the law. This will in turn ensure improved 
standards in animal welfare and reduce the impact on non-target species” (Welsh 
Government, Animal Welfare at the Heart of new Snares Code, 25 Sept 2015).  

The problems foxes can cause to wildlife and endangered species as well as gamekeepers, 
farmers and land managers, and the means available to control them, do not differ between 
England and Wales. As such, sector bodies including the Countryside Alliance encouraged 
Defra to publish or endorse a revised Code for England as soon as possible, using the 
example of the Code produced in Wales. This was achieved in 2016.  
 
The resulting Code of best practice on the use of snares for fox control in England (2016) was 
founded on a more solid research base, and its publication provided an opportunity to publicise 
it among farmers, who since 2005 had been found to set almost as many snares for fox control 
as gamekeepers but had not been targeted in previous promotion. The GWCT said of the 
updated Code, 
 

“We know that by following it, practitioners can largely eliminate the dismal outcomes 
that have made the use of snares so controversial.” 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 79

http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130402151656/http:/archive.defra.gov.uk/wildlife-pets/wildlife/management/documents/snares-cop.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130402151656/http:/archive.defra.gov.uk/wildlife-pets/wildlife/management/documents/snares-cop.pdf
http://randd.defra.gov.uk/Default.aspx?Menu=Menu&Module=More&Location=None&Completed=0&ProjectID=14689
http://randd.defra.gov.uk/Default.aspx?Menu=Menu&Module=More&Location=None&Completed=0&ProjectID=14689
https://www.gwct.org.uk/media/208730/snaring_in_scotland.pdf
http://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/code-of-practice-on-snares1/
http://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/code-of-practice-on-snares1/
https://www.gwct.org.uk/media/680075/Snaring-Best-Practice-Booklet.pdf
https://www.gwct.org.uk/blogs/news/2016/october/we-face-the-loss-of-snares-unless-there-is-wholesale-compliance-with-the-new-code-of-practice/
https://www.gwct.org.uk/blogs/news/2016/october/we-face-the-loss-of-snares-unless-there-is-wholesale-compliance-with-the-new-code-of-practice/


Countryside Alliance Briefing Note – Snares 
December 2021 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 

 
 

For more information contact: 
 
 
Rachel Evans 
Director for Wales 
Rachel-evans@countryside-alliance.org  
 

 

David Bean 
Parliament & Government Relations Manager  
David-Bean@countryside-alliance.org  
0207 840 9260 

James Legge 
Director of Public Affairs 
James-Legge@countryside-alliance.org  
0207 840 9250 

Tudalen y pecyn 80

mailto:Rachel-evans@countryside-alliance.org
mailto:David-Bean@countryside-alliance.org
mailto:James-Legge@countryside-alliance.org


bpca.org.uk

Glue boards are essential for public health

A complete ban on rodent glue boards in Wales will 
have a devastating impact on human health and 
safety. Everything from hospital wards to school 
lunchrooms will be liable to close while extended pest 
management programmes occur. 

The British Retail Consortium (BRC) and UK Hospitality 
believe a ban on glue boards will profoundly impact 
SMEs, particularly in the food and hospitality sector.  

Rodents carry and transmit pathogenic 
microorganisms (and therefore disease). Failure to 
act quickly in a high-risk environment can result in 
sickness, distress and death.

Rodent management programmes will take longer in 
crucial areas, meaning temporary closures (minimum 
of 2 weeks) of sensitive sites, such as:

 � Small food and hospitality businesses
 � Hospitals and care homes wards
 � Food factories and preparation areas
 � Critical infrastructure and government buildings.

In domestic cases, private homeowners could 
spend weeks living with rodents, risking their health.  

A total ban on glue boards would remove a tool that 
helps protect some of the most vulnerable people 
and high-risk environments. This would have a 
detrimental effect on public health.

No other tool works quicker than rodent glue 
boards. We have no viable alternatives to glue 
boards when speed is crucial. Without access to 
glue boards, people may die. 

Our recommendations

1 Ban glue boards for untrained users 
BPCA supports a ban on glue boards for the general 
public. 

A typical consumer should never be able to purchase 
glue boards. They do not have the training to deploy 
glue boards safely without accidentally capturing non-
target animals. 

Even if they do everything right, they’re unlikely to be 
able to humanely dispatch any rodents caught.

Glue boards should be banned for anyone who is not 
a qualified pest professional.

3 Ensure licences are available rapidly 

For professionals, glue traps are already a last resort 
and are only used as an urgent or emergency control 
measure. Any licence process should be rapid to 
avoid potential harm to public health.

Glue boards: a briefing note

Hospitals, care 
homes, food 
businesses and other 
critical infrastructure 
relies on glue boards 
to protect vulnerable 
people. 

“Everything from hospital wards to school 
lunchrooms will be liable to close while extended 
pest managment programmes take place”.

British Pest Control Association

BPCA is the professional association for the UK public 
health pest management industry. We’re a not-for-profit 
organisation representing over 700 companies in the UK 
and highlight the risks of inadequate pest control.

BPCA is here to support Members of the Senedd
in any way we can. Please contact us for more information.

2 Create a licensing scheme for pest professionals 

Politicians in Westminster acknowledged the profound impact 
a complete ban of glue boards would have on public health 
and the economy. 

They added a licensing provision for pest professionals to 
maintain access to glue boards.

We urge the Senedd to add a provision for licensing glue 
boards for professional use so our members can continue to 
protect your citizens. 

Ian Andrew
Chief Executive
ian@bpca.org.uk 
07899 891 038 

Az Chowdhury 
Public Affairs Consultant 
az@nudgefactory.co.uk
07415 968 160

Tudalen y pecyn 81



bpca.org.uk

Tools available for rodent control

Proofing Denial of food 
and water

Removal of 
harbourage

Trapping Biocides (rat 
poisons)

Glue (sticky) 
boards

Can be used after an infestation 
has occurred.

No chance of secondary poisoning.

Instantly dispatches rodents.
Takes ~2 weeks

Boards are not 
designed to kill 
rodents. Boards 

are checked 
no less than 

every 12 hours, 
and caught 
rodents are 

then humanely 
dispatched 
by the pest 

professional.

Quick to combat infestation 
occurred.

Rats are 
naturally 

suspicious of 
new things and 

often avoid 
newly set traps 
for some time

Takes ~2 weeks

Boards can be 
placed where 
rodents must 
travel for food, 

water and 
harbourage

There is no viable alternative to glue boards

Pest professionals have several tools we can use to protect people 
from rodents and the harm they cause.

Once an infestation has occurred, it’s a professional’s responsibility 
to choose the right tool, balancing:

 � The risk to non-target species
 � Animal welfare and suffering
 � The risk to public health
 � The practical limitations of the environment.

The following table details all the tools pest professionals use 
to control rodents in conflict with human health alongside their 
strengths and weaknesses in different use cases.

Clearly when speed is critical, 
in areas such as hospitals, food 
premises and around vulnerable 
people, sometimes glue boards 
are the only viable option. 

Tudalen y pecyn 82



  
 
 
 

Agriculture (Wales) Bill Submission 
 
As a Trade Association we don’t actively use glue boards, however, we do represent a 
large number of pest control organisations and individual pest control technicians who 
use them periodically in accordance with the Pest Management Alliance Glue Board 
Code of Practice (COP).  
 
For reference, it is a mandatory requirement for members of the NPTA to adhere to the 
COP.  
 
In line with the COP, we believe that glue boards should only be used where there is 
either (a) an imminent risk to public health, or (b) where all other methods have proved 
to be ineffective.  
 
There is growing evidence that house mice in particular, are either avoiding rodent bait 
stations (behavioural resistance). Note, (Behavioural resistance in mice) – Simmons, 
ICUP 2017 or have an intolerance to cereal-based baits, which make up the vast 
majority of rodenticides available to professional pest controllers. We refer you to the 
study carried out by R.E. Humphries (Cereal aversion in behaviourally resistant house 
mice in Birmingham, UK) 
 
There are a range of alternative methods available, including rodenticides, dogs, 
shooting etc, but not all are applicable to every situation and are all subject to risk 
assessment. Rodenticides are themselves under considerable scrutiny at present, due 
to contamination of the wider environment. 
 
Physical trapping methods can sometimes prove effective; However, these devices also 
have their own advantages/disadvantages. For example, if a rodent ‘trips’ a trap but fails 
to become trapped, they will likely never return to that device, having a knock-on effect 
on public health. As a consequence, we strongly believe that for any pest control 
programme to be effective, a range of tools should be available to professionals to 
ensure that total control can be achieved. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   NPTA Ltd, NPTA House 

12 Farrington Way, Eastwood 
Nottingham NG16 3BF 

T. 01773 717 716 
E. office@npta.org.uk 
W. www.npta.org.uk 

  Bringing you www.pesttech.org.uk 
tomorrow’s association for today’s technician 

 
 

Company Registration Number 4189375. VAT Number Registration 745 4623 24. Registered in England and Wales. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 83

mailto:office@npta.org.uk
http://www.npta.org.uk/
http://www.pesttech.org.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

 

We believe that public health would suffer should a complete ban on glue traps be 
introduced. Rodents would, in some situations, become extremely difficult to control and 
treatment programmes prolonged unnecessarily. 
 
Genetic resistance is also becoming more apparent. Surveillance in 2019 by University 
of Reading’s Vertebrate Pests Unit identified that  
 
• House mice (93%) carry a resistant gene 
• Rats (61%) carrying at least one rodenticide-resistance gene.  
• Among rats, nearly half have inherited the gene from both parents. 
 
For this reason alone, we believe that the removal of an effective physical control 
method would be inadvisable.  
 
Rodents are well known for being vectors for a wide range of bacteria and viruses (e.g., 
Salmonella and Hantavirus). Therefore, any additional restrictions placed on methods of 
control could limit the efficacy of any pest control programme. This could have social 
implications by potentially causing people to succumb to rodent borne diseases and 
economic implications for a number of reasons.  
 
(1) the inability through illness of people to work if they contract a rodent borne disease  
 
(2) closure of food (or other) businesses due to health concerns associated with rodent                  
infestations. 
 
We acknowledge that glue boards have the ability to cause suffering. However, there is, 
in our view, no method of killing that can be considered humane and the elimination of 
rodents has to be considered critical to protect to public health. 
 
All members of the NPTA are advised that a swift method of dispatch is required and 
whilst the current COP states a twelve-hour interval between checking boards, this is 
maximum time allowance. It is therefore highly recommended/encouraged that glue 
boards are checked more frequently. We have evidence (although anecdotal) that glue 
boards are frequently used to trap rodents where immediate dispatch occurs. Situations 
can and will occur where rodents can be found for example, on a food pallet. In these 
situations, the rodents will disperse when the pallet is disturbed prolonging the 
treatment programme and having a potential negative effect on public health. Glue 
boards therefore remain the only effective method to prevent this. 
 
We would not support a total ban on glue boards due to the need to protect public 
health. However, we would fully support a ban on use by the amateur and non-
professional market. These groups have received little or no training on the use of these 
products and the subsequent dispatch techniques required to ensure that any ‘kill’ is a 
swift and humane as possible. 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 84



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GWCT Wales Written Evidence for the 

Senedd’s Economy, Trade and Rural Affairs 

Committee regarding the Agriculture 

(Wales) Bill 

 

 

 

Who we are  

This paper has been produced by the Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust Wales (GWCT 

Wales), a research and education charity that has published over 100 scientific papers in 

peer-reviewed journals on issues relating to predation control and the conservation of 

farmland and moorland birds over the past 50 years. On the basis of our scientific expertise 

and credibility, we regularly provide advice to such statutory bodies as Defra, Nature Scot, 

Natural Resources Wales and Natural England. We also provide practical advice to farmers, 

land managers and other conservation organisations on how to manage their land with a 

view to improving biodiversity. Our Advisory team have, for many years, run industry-

leading best practice predation management training courses. These courses are based on 

practical experience backed up by GWCT science. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 85



The case for Licencing Humane Cable Restraints  

This paper is submitted in conjunction with additional papers which should also be 

considered as evidence. However, this paper is designed to make the key points concisely 

for the committee, whilst the additional papers provide further detail as necessary. 

The GWCT argue that the Humane Cable Restraint (hereafter ‘HCR’), previously known as a 

code-compliant snare, is a live-capture restraining device which is both humane and 

selective when operated according to the Code of Practice1 (hereafter ‘CoP’). The Trust can 

confidently argue this case having carried out over 200 person-years’ worth of research in to 

making fox restraints more effective, target specific and humane. The Trust has undertaken 

fox radio tracking since the 1980s, building fundamental knowledge regards the welfare of 

caught foxes which are fitted with radio collars and released unharmed. 

Where the Minister states, “these devices catch animals indiscriminately, causing great deal 

of suffering, and they are not compatible with the high animal welfare standards we strive 

for here in Wales” the Trust argues that, for HCRs operated according to the CoP, the 

evidence contradicts this claim.  

The scientific research demonstrates that the carefully selected components of a HCR 

improve selectivity2 and, when operated according to the CoP, the HCR meets the 

requirements of the Agreement on International Humane Trapping Standards (hereafter 

‘AIHTS’) for restraining devices3. The AIHTS4 are the highest standards available 

internationally, and ensure the highest animal welfare standards, therefore the Trust 

assumes the Minister was not referring to HCRs when giving the above statement? 

NB - It is important to note that the Trust does not argue the above case for other types of 

cable restraint i.e., non-code compliant snares, and we have advocated banning the sale and 

use of these other types of snares for numerous years, based on our concerns regarding 

poor practice and poor animal welfare. 

NB – The Humane Cable Restraint is referred to as snare type D within the Defra 2012 

report3. It is this design which became the Code-compliant snare and is now known as the 

HCR. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 86



The Conservation of Section 7 Priority species 

Furthermore, whilst the evidence above demonstrates that HCRs operated according to the 

CoP are both selective and humane, the Trust is deeply concerned that, based on the 

available evidence, banning this method of fox control will directly critically endanger 

several Section 7 Priority species under the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Section 7 Priority species are species which the Ministers consider are of key significance to 

sustain and improve biodiversity in relation to Wales. Under the Environment (Wales) Act 

2016 the Welsh Ministers must also take all reasonable steps to maintain and enhance the 

living organisms listed in Section 7 and encourage others to take such steps. The GWCT 

therefore argues that banning the sale and use of HCRs, rather than licencing them, will be 

in breach of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

 

The role of Humane Cable Restraints in Conservation – eight case 

studies  

It is worth highlighting the scientific justification for lethal predation management in 

conservation. Lethal predation management, for example fox control, is widely evidenced 

and accepted as essential to conserve certain species such as the Eurasian curlew (hereafter 

‘curlew’). 

NB - Curlew is a Section 7 Priority species under the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. It is 

classified by the IUCN as ‘Globally Near Threatened’ and is on its Red List of Threatened 

Species. In Wales there has been an estimated 90% loss of curlew since 1993, with the 

population declining at 6% a year it is estimated that this iconic species will be functionally 

extinct (cease to breed) in Wales by 2033 – eleven years from now. Natural Resources Wales 

(hereafter ‘NRW’) rightly consider curlew as one of the highest bird conservation priorities 

in Wales. 

Research indicates that high levels of predation are a likely cause of curlew declines 5, 6. 

Predation is one of the main factors limiting curlew recovery in the UK 7, 8. Foxes, corvids 

and mustelids have been regularly identified as predators of eggs and chicks of a range of 

Tudalen y pecyn 87



waders 9, 10, 11, 12. Lethal predator management can be used to dramatically reduce the 

number of generalist predators, namely foxes and carrion crows 6, 7, 13, 14. When 

implemented at the landscape level, lethal control can result in local and regional predator 

suppression 15, 16, 17, 18. Lethal control has been shown to be effective at increasing breeding 

productivity of several wader species above the level required for stable populations in 

different countries and situations 6, 13, 14, 19, 20. 

It is incredibly important to note that the only proven cases of population recoveries of 

threatened Section 7 Priority species on privately owned land (i.e., not nature reserves) 

have come from conservation projects where predation management included cable 

restraints. Please note that the term HCR is not universally used in this section as some data 

refers to pre-HCR design. It is also important to recognise that the above refers to privately 

owned land as some nature reserves can erect predator proof fences to protect and recover 

colonial nesting species such as lapwing. However, there are no examples, on-reserve or 

otherwise, of any population recoveries of curlew without cable restraints being used.  

The below case studies demonstrate the role of cable restraints in conservation of Section 7 

Priority species: 

 

GWCT’s Upland Predation Experiment at Otterburn6 

This experiment, known as a replicated, randomised removal experiment was designed to 

determine the impact of predation management on ground nesting birds on and around 

moorland in the North of England.  

Key findings were: 

• The percentage of lapwing fledging young went from 19% when no predators were 

controlled to 57% when predators were controlled 

• The percentage of golden plover fledging young went from 18% when no predators 

were controlled to 75% when predators were controlled 

• The percentage of curlew fledging young went from 15% when no predators were 

controlled to 51% when predators were controlled 

• Red grouse increased two-fold when predators were controlled 

Tudalen y pecyn 88



• Grey partridge increased two-fold when predators were controlled 

• Black grouse increased six-fold when predators were controlled 

NB - In this study 26% of the foxes controlled were first caught in cable restraints before 

being humanely dispatched. (K. Fletcher, Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust, unpublished 

data).  

NB - Please note lapwing, golden plover, curlew, red grouse, grey partridge and black grouse 

are all Section 7 Priority species 

 

Joint Raptor Study20 & Langholm Moor Demonstration Project22 

After the Joint Raptor Study at Langholm (1992 -97) ceased and predation management 

ceased it was noted that Red Grouse and Hen Harrier numbers decreased. The Langholm 

Moor Demonstration Project (2008 – 18) was set up to reinstate moorland management 

and predation management to measure the impact and was a partnership between 

Buccleuch Estates, Scottish Natural Heritage, Game & Wildlife Conservation Trust, the Royal 

Society for the Protection of Birds and Natural England 

Key findings were: 

• The percentage of hen harrier fledging young went from 39% when no predators 

were controlled to 79% when predators were controlled 

• Curlew increased on average by 10% per annum  

• Red grouse increased by 8% per annum 

• Golden Plover increased on average by 16% per annum  

NB - In this study 21% of the foxes controlled were first caught in cable restraints before 

being humanely dispatched 23. 

NB - Please note hen harrier are a Section 7 Priority species. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 89



Nature Fund Berwyn, Migneint, Black Mountains & Radnor Upland Recovery 

Project24 

A collaborative Nature Fund Project between Farming and Wildlife Advisory Group, Game 

and Wildlife Conservation Trust and Country Land and Business Association was created to 

explore the feasibility of setting up and operating an upland owner-led, landscape-scale 

conservation project which aimed to reverse upland bird declines. The initial five-year 

project plan was decreased to a seven-month operational period due to funding constraints 

and took place between November 2014 and June 2015. 

Key findings: 

• Breeding bird survey data is unavailable for this project, in part due to difficulties 

with site access permission required from regional NRW staff, despite the project 

surveyors obtaining licences from NRW’s licencing team at the time. 

• Due to the short nature of the project no trend data was established 

 

NB – This project is included as the report detailed that 69% of foxes culled were first caught 

in cable restraints24. This statistic highlights the chosen method of control when the 

vegetation and terrain make night shooting particularly difficult. 

 

Powys Moorland Partnership, Three Parishes for the Common Good 

Sustainable Management Schemes 

These two Sustainable Management Schemes were set up to restore biodiversity and have 

included predation management and the use of HCRs. 

Whilst the data is unpublished, the projects are useful as they give percentages of foxes 

caught in HCRs and estimated associated curlew productivity. 

Key findings: 

Tudalen y pecyn 90



• Powys Moorland Partnership & Three Parishes for the Common Good report 

regarding the local curlew population - taken from the ‘Fifth Year Report’ (2022), 

Nick Myhill 

o “The figures within these ‘constant search’ surveys suggest that numbers 

have been maintained, and more extensive observations outside these 

surveys indicate the same, with the last year (2022) even suggesting a 

possible slight upturn. Given the general indication that Curlew are nearing 

extinction as a breeding bird in Wales, this may be a small ray of hope, but 

the situation remains precarious” 

NB - The predation management reports from the Powys Moorland Partnership detail that 

30% of the foxes controlled were first caught in HCRs before being humanely dispatched (W. 

Duff Gordon, Ireland Moor, unpublished data). 

NB – Please note that Ireland Moor, part of the Powys Moorland Partnership, is included as 

an Important Curlew Area (ICA) within the Wales Action Plan for the Recovery of Curlew28. 

 

The Camlad Valley Sustainable Management Scheme 

This Sustainable Management Scheme was set up to restore biodiversity and has included 

predation management and the use of HCRs. 

Whilst the data is unpublished, the project is useful as it gives percentages of foxes caught in 

HCRs and estimated associated curlew productivity. 

Key findings: 

• The Camlad Valley Sustainable Management Scheme estimates productivity for 

curlew to be in the range of 0.66 – 1.66 (J. Banks, Camlad Valley CIC, 2022 

unpublished data). It is therefore likely that, if this success continues a conservative 

estimate would see the population achieving maintenance. Whereas before the 

project began productivity for the area was estimated at 0.1. 

NB – It is widely accepted that 0.48 - 0.62 (chicks per pair) is the level of breeding 

productivity required to sustain curlew populations25.  

Tudalen y pecyn 91



NB - In this project 24% of the foxes controlled were first caught in HCRs before being 

humanely dispatched (J. Banks, Camlad Valley CIC, 2022 unpublished data). 

NB – Please note that the Camlad Valley, is part of the Montgomeryshire Important Curlew 

Area (ICA) within the Wales Action Plan for the Recovery of Curlew28. 

 

Life Waders for Real Project26 

Waders for Real seeks to reverse the decline of breeding waders in the Avon 

Valley, a river floodplain of high biodiversity interest, part of which is 

designated as a Special Protection Area (SPA). Where numbers of northern 

lapwing pairs have fallen from 208 in 1990 to 71 in 2010. The below data is 

taken from a case study of Bisterne Estate from the project area. 

Key findings: 

• Before the project (2007 – 15) lapwing productivity averaged 0.49 

• During the project (2016 – 19) lapwing productivity averaged 0.82 

• During the final year of the project (2019) lapwing productivity was 1.17 

NB – It is widely accepted that 0.7 (chicks per pair) is the level of breeding productivity 

required to sustain lapwing populations27. 

NB - In this case study 10% of the foxes controlled were first caught in HCRs before being 

humanely dispatched (R. Brewer, Bisterne Estate, unpublished data). 

 

Ruabon Moor, Important Curlew Area as listed in ‘A Wales Action Plan for the Recovery of 

Curlew’ 

Ruabon Moor is part of the Berwyn and South Clwyd Mountains SAC and included in the 

Ruabon, Llantysilio Mountains & Minera SSSI which sits within the Clwydian Range and Dee 

Valley AONB. It is estimated to have one of the largest remaining populations, and highest 

Tudalen y pecyn 92



density of curlew in Wales, hence being classed as an Important Curlew Area (ICA) within 

the Wales Action Plan for the Recovery of Curlew28. It also holds approximately 85 – 90% of 

the Welsh black grouse population. 

Key findings: 

• A conservative estimate of 1.8 productivity for curlew in the 2022 breeding season 

NB – At this ICA 80% of the foxes controlled were first caught in HCRs before being 

humanely dispatched (S. Hart, Ruabon Moor, unpublished data). 

 

Brown Hare Conservation at Loddington and Royston29 

The above case studies have focused on ground nesting, avian Section 7 Priority species of 

conservation concern. It is worth noting that the brown hare, another Section 7 Priority 

species which has declined by approximately 75% in Wales.  

The fox is a significant predator of brown hares, and effective control of fox density leads to 

substantially higher hare densities, given suitable habitat29. 

Key Findings: 

• In both studies the predation management had a significant positive effect, 

amounting to an approximate doubling of brown hare annual population growth 

rate. 

NB – In the Loddington study 33% of the foxes controlled were first caught in cable 

restraints before being humanely dispatched. In the Royston study 44% of the foxes 

controlled were first caught in cable restraints before being humanely dispatched2. 

 

Summary of the role of Humane Cable Restraints in Conservation 

The GWCT argues that HCRs are too valuable a conservation tool to lose and that the 

evidence provided above cements this argument. The Trust maintains that HCRs must be 

made available for those needing to control foxes for conservation purposes. The above 

Tudalen y pecyn 93



eight case studies demonstrate key conservation successes, where eight Section 7 Priority 

species are the beneficiaries of predation management which included cable restraints 

operated to the CoP.  

The Trust highlights that these conservation success stories, turning the tide and recovering 

species which are elsewhere disappearing at an alarming rate, are not easily come by and 

require huge conservation efforts underpinned by the ability to use all the ‘tools’ in the 

toolbox. Without the ability to use HCRs it is entirely feasible and incredibly likely that such 

conservation successes would not have been achievable. The case studies above provide 

nine examples where fox control depended up on fox restraints to varying degrees, from 

10% - 80% and averaging at 37% of foxes controlled being first caught in a cable restraint. 

Whilst night vision and thermal imaging have improved the efficiency of night shooting of 

foxes, barriers remain to its efficacy. Vegetation height such as heather, rushes and silage 

crop during the nesting season easily hide a fox and make both night vision and thermal 

imaging useless in key locations. 

The Trust maintains that there is no other method of fox control that is as efficient or as 

effective as a HCR in all scenarios at all times of the year. 

 

Conservation without HCRs – three case studies 

The below conservation project case studies outline the importance of why HCR licencing is 

too valuable to dismiss. Whilst millions of pounds are spent in such projects and hundreds 

of foxes are killed through methods not involving HCRs, the conservation outcomes are 

limited and unsuccessful.  

 

Lake Vyrnwy RSPB reserve30  

The Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (hereafter ‘RSPB’) have managed their Lake Vyrnwy 

reserve for several decades and counts estimated there were 24 pairs of curlew between 

1978 – 1986. Further counts then estimated six pairs in the 1990s and one attempted 

nesting attempt in 201130. The 2022 report was one pair attempting to breed off the 

Tudalen y pecyn 94



reserve, with the nest predated within 2 weeks. The curlew productivity at Vyrnwy is 

therefore 0. This is despite predation management being put in place and the RSPB shooting 

foxes at night on the reserve. It is important to highlight that the RSPB has a policy of no 

cable restraints. 

The current situation, taken from the RSPB recent Heritage Lottery Fund appeal where the 

RSPB states “Without the serious interventions RSPB is proposing in this bid, in the next few 

years curlew, black grouse and merlin will cease to appear as a breeding species in this area 

of Wales. It is likely that the same fate would fall red grouse and hen harrier within the next 

decade”. 

 

RSPB Trial Management Project as part of the Curlew Recovery Programme 

Conservation Project 

The RSPB Trial Management Project ran between 2015 -20 and was designed to test habitat 

management and predator control interventions across six sites in the UK. Whilst results 

from this project are yet to be published, an RSPB presentation given to Gylifinir Cymru 

members in November 2020 detailed there were no differences in productivity between 

the control sites and the trial sites (D. Douglas & I. Tomankova, RSPB, unpublished data). 

Again, it is worth highlighting the RSPB has a policy not to use HCRs. This project cost in 

excess of one million pounds over five years and killed 97 foxes as reported by M. Harper, 

RSPB in 2019 in his blog titled ‘The conservationist's dilemma: an update on the science, 

policy and practice of the impact of predators on wild birds (6)’31. 

 

RSPB Life Project - Ysbyty Ifan and Hiraethog 

This RSPB project began in 2021 and is currently ongoing. It consists of five sites across the 

UK, one of which is at Ysbyty Ifan and Hiraethog in North Wales. The project aims to have 

enhanced habitat conditions leading to stable curlew populations within the project sites by 

December 2024. Predation management is undertaken for the project however, as 

discussed above the RSPB have a policy not to use HCRs. 

Tudalen y pecyn 95



This year a conservative estimate is that ten curlew chicks fledged from the area which 

holds an estimated 38 pairs of curlew (S. Shakespear, RSPB, unpublished data). This gives a 

0.26 productivity rate which although conservative, is still unfortunately below the required 

productivity to maintain the population i.e. productivity below 0.48 - 0.62 (chicks per pair) 

leads to a declining population25. 

 

Summary 

It is now widely, unequivocally accepted that the conservation of some Section 7 Priority 

Species in Wales require lethal predation management to conserve them and avoid their 

functional extinction in Wales. The GWCT argues that if predation management is to be 

justified it should be legal, effective, targeted and humane. Without including HCRs as a 

‘tool’ in the toolbox of predation managers then, as argued above, it is highly questionable 

that the predation management is effective. It is worth noting again that there are no 

examples of successful curlew conservation without the use of HCRs, and that this is very 

likely to be the case ‘off-reserve’ for the rest of the eight Section 7 Priority species listed too. 

 

Proposal for a future HCR licence 

The GWCT proposes that HCRs become licenced.  

• To receive a licence individuals would complete mandatory training and 

accreditation allowing them to purchase and use HCRs.  

• Manufacturers should only produce HCRs that conform to the design specified in the 

CoP (including a built-in breakaway link at the eye and stop set to allow a minimum 

noose of circumference 26cm).  

NB – this is an area which the Scottish legislation has failed to incorporate and which has 

created associated problems. The GWCT can only vouch for the humaneness of a HCR with 

all the listed components and when it is operated in accordance of the CoP. 

Tudalen y pecyn 96



• The GWCT proposes that each practitioner has an identifying number that their HCRs 

are tagged with.  

• Best Practice use in Wales has already moved forward with certain practitioners 

using electronic data loggers to evidence that their HCRs have been checked to the 

legal requirement. This could be adopted within a licencing system, as could 

informing local Wildlife Crime Officers of their tagged HCR locations. 

• The CoP requirement to check HCRs twice daily should also adhered to within a HCR 

licence.  

• Practitioners not following the requirements of a HCR would see their licence 

revoked. 

 

Reasoning  

The HCR is too valuable a conservation tool to lose outright, as has been demonstrated 

above. Section 7 Priority species are those which the Ministers must take all reasonable 

steps to maintain and enhance and encourage others to take such steps. The GWCT argues 

it is reasonable to licence a device which is scientifically proven to be humane and selective 

when used according to the CoP. 

There are no viable, effective alternative solutions available which could fill the void left if 

HCRs are not licenced. With afforestation increasing in Wales, it is likely ground nesting 

Section 7 Priority species will face enhanced predation pressure in the future – making it 

even harder to effectively reduce that pressure enough to fledge young. The evidence 

supplied within this paper highlights the role of HCRs in this conservation struggle. Live-

capture cage traps have been demonstrated to be ineffective for fox capture in the UK, with 

severely lower catch success compared to HCRs. Additionally, the other alternative option, 

WCS collarum live capture fox traps are less successful and less selective. In both cases it is 

completely unknown whether either option would pass standards set within the AIHTS for 

restraining traps, and due to their nature it is highly dubious whether they would pass. 

Licencing HCRs would better enable the Welsh authorities to enforce the law, as illegal 

practice would be much more obvious. For instance, any untagged non-HCR would be 

Tudalen y pecyn 97



illegal. Additionally, under the Animal Welfare Act 2006 failure to comply with the Code is 

not an offence in itself, however, failure to comply with a relevant provision in the Code 

may be relied upon by a court as tending to establish liability.  The Trust argues that making 

it an offence to not comply with the CoP would give authorities a much stronger position 

and would help avoid poor practice.  

Unfortunately, illegal snare activity such as targeting domestic pets in and around human 

settlements, or illegally targeting protected species such as badger sadly occurs. This illegal 

activity is undertaken by criminals who are not interested in fox control for conservation 

purposes, and it is severely unfortunate that an outright ban has been proposed which 

would stop law abiding conservationists (who want to do the right thing and abide by the 

law) from undertaking their profession. The Ministers must realise that the illegal activity 

they are trying to stop is already illegal. Better resourced Wildlife Crime Officers and a 

licencing system which makes it easier to prosecute illegal activity are more likely to 

successfully end criminal activity. 

 

Additional comments 

• In the Agriculture (Wales) White paper published in December 2020, which proposed 

to regulate the sale and use of snares in Wales there was no mention of any 

intention to ban the use of snares. This was inline with the last stakeholder meeting 

held in 2019 where stakeholders were told that the Minister was not looking to ban 

snares but could make the voluntary code a statutory code with a legal basis if 

inclined. 

• The Welsh Government document titled ‘Our Response and Forward Plan for the 

Agriculture (Wales) White Paper’ in September 2021 then stated ‘We will bring 

forward legislation to amend the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to ban the use of 

snares and glue traps’, however, there had never been a consultation on banning the 

use of snares. This was highly concerning 

• Also highly concerning, was the mention of an additional 887 responses submitted 

through a campaign organised by the League Against Cruel Sports which seemed to 

unfairly weight the argument towards banning the use of snares (which was not 

Tudalen y pecyn 98



something being consulted on). If a campaign such as this was to be weighted 

equally then other organisations should have had their membership tallied and 

recorded to add weight to their own response. This was not the case. 

• Regarding evidence of best practice and code compliance, 69 practitioners were 

trained up to the last stakeholder meeting in 2019, and 34 practitioners have since 

received training. Within the minutes of that meeting GWCT outlined plans to 

address a lack of training uptake and had set in place funding for courses with Young 

Farmers in 2020 before the Covid Pandemic forced cancelation. It was argued that 

participation was low as there was no legal requirement to participate and most 

courses in Wales were funded by Farming Connect, meaning the farming community 

were less inclined to pay full cost for a course. The Defra contract research3 found 

that more farmers used snares than gamekeepers, but more snares were used by 

each gamekeeper. It also demonstrated that the farmers were less aware of the CoP, 

less farmers had read the CoP and less had received any training in snare use, 

therefore identifying the need for increased farmer training. 

• Additionally, with the minutes of the 2019 stakeholder meeting M. Williams, Welsh 

Government chair of the meeting stated that ‘nothing’s been agreed yet’ and that 

‘officials will be looking at progress year on year’ when asked by the RSPCA for a 

timeframe on the Welsh Government’s conclusions as to whether the Code has been 

a success. The last stakeholder group meeting was in 2019 and GWCT have received 

no further correspondence on the matter. 

• This paper has not addressed the economic impact that banning cable restraints 

could have on the game management sector, worth £75 million annually to the 

Welsh economy, or the sheep sector, worth an estimated £270 million to the Welsh 

Economy, or the poultry sector worth an estimated £95 million to the Welsh 

economy.  

• Finally, it is worth noting that if the economic driver and incentive for undertaking 

conservation work becomes unviable, then many individuals could lose their 

livelihoods and their family homes, and much conservation work would also be lost. 

The Value of Shooting PACEC report32 estimates that £7.4 million is spent annually on 

Tudalen y pecyn 99



conservation in Wales by the game management community and that the game 

management community supports the equivalent of 2,400 full-time jobs.  

o Taking Ruabon Moor as a ‘real life’ example, if the gamekeepers there cannot 

effectively control foxes their jobs will become unviable. Not only would they 

become unemployed, they and their families would lose their homes. Along 

with the human cost, Wales would lose its population of black grouse within 

years, and the decline and demise of a large percentage of other Section 7 

Priority species such as curlew (for which Ruabon is a stronghold) would be 

accelerated.  

 

References: 

1. Welsh Government. (2015). Code of best practice on the use of snares in fox control 

2. Short, M.J., Weldon, A.W., Richardson, S.M., & Reynolds, J.C. (2012). Selectivity and 

injury risk in an improved neck snare for live-capture of foxes. Wildlife Society Bulletin, 

36: 208-219. 

3. Defra. (2012). Determining the extent of use and humaneness of snares in England and 

Wales.  

4. European Union–Canada–Russian Federation. 1998. Agreement on International 

Humane Trapping Standards [AIHTS] between the European Community, Canada and 

the Russian Federation. Official Journal of the European Union L42:43–57. 

5. Grant MC, Orsman C, Easton J, Lodge C, Smith M, Thompson G, Rodwell S, Moore N. 

1999. Breeding success and causes of breeding failure of Curlew Numenius arquata in 

Northern Ireland. Journal of Applied Ecology 36, 59–74 

6. Fletcher K, Aebischer NJ, Baines D, Foster R, Hoodless AN. 2010. Changes in breeding 

success and abundance of ground-nesting moorland birds in relation to the 

experimental deployment of legal predator control. Journal of Applied Ecology 47, 263–

272 

7. Brown D, Wilson J, Douglas D, Thompson P, Foster S, McCulloch N, Phillips J, Stroud D, 

Whitehead S, Crockford N, Sheldon R. 2015. The Eurasian Curlew-the most pressing bird 

conservation priority in the UK? British Birds 108, 660–668. 

Tudalen y pecyn 100



8. Zielonka NB, Hawkes RW, Jones H, Burnside RJ, Dolman PM. 2019. Placement, survival 

and predator identity of Eurasian Curlew Numenius arquata nests on lowland grass-

heath. Bird Study 66, 471–483. 

9. Moore NP, Roy SS, Helyar A. 2003. Mink (mustela vison) eradication to protect ground-

nesting birds in the western isles, Scotland, United Kingdom. New Zealand Journal of 

Zoology 30, 443–452. 

10. Bolton M, Tyler G, Smith K, Bamford R. 2007. The impact of predator control on lapwing 

Vanellus vanellus breeding success on wet grassland nature reserves. Journal of Applied 

Ecology 44, 534–544. 

11. Bodey TW, McDonald RA, Sheldon RD, Bearhop S. 2011. Absence of effects of predator 

control on nesting success of Northern Lapwings Vanellus vanellus: Implications for 

conservation. Ibis 153, 543–555. 

12. Roos S, Smart J, Gibbons DW, Wilson JD. 2018. A review of predation as a limiting factor 

for bird populations in mesopredator-rich landscapes: a case study of the UK. Biological 

Reviews 93, 1915–1937. 

13. Baines D, Redpath S, Richardson M, Thirgood S. 2008. The direct and indirect effects of 

predation by Hen Harriers Circus cyaneus on trends in breeding birds on a Scottish 

grouse moor. Ibis 150, 27-36. 

14. Douglas DJT, Bellamy PE, Stephen LS, Pearce-Higgins JW, Wilson JD, Grant MC. 2014. 

Upland land use predicts population decline in a globally near-threatened wader. Journal 

of Applied Ecology 51, 194-203.  

15. Heydon MJ, Reynolds JC. 2000a. Demography of rural foxes (Vulpes vulpes) in relation to 

cull intensity in three contrasting regions of Britain. Journal of Zoology 251, 265–276. 

16. Heydon MJ, Reynolds JC. 2000b. Fox (Vulpes vulpes) management in three contrasting 

regions of Britain, in relation to agricultural and sporting interests. Journal of Zoology 

251, 237–252. 

17. Heydon MJ, Reynolds JC, Short MJ. 2000. Variation in abundance of foxes (Vulpes vulpes) 

between three regions of rural Britain, in relation to landscape and other variables. 

Journal of Zoology 251: 253–264. 

18. Porteus TA, Reynolds JC, McAllister MK. 2019. Population dynamics of foxes during 

restricted-area culling in Britain: Advancing understanding through state-space 

modelling of culling records. PloS ONE 14: e0225201. 

Tudalen y pecyn 101



19. Tharme AP, Green RE, Baines D, Bainbridge IP, O'Brien M. 2001. The effect of 

management for red grouse shooting on the population density of breeding birds on 

heather-dominated moorland. Journal of Applied Ecology 38, 439–457. 

20. Niemczynowicz A, Świętochowski P, Brzeziński M, Zalewski A. 2017. Non-native predator 

control increases the nesting success of birds: American mink preying on wader nests. 

Biological Conservation 212, 86–95. 

21. Ludwig, S. C., Roos, S., Bubb, D. & Baines, D. (2017) Long-term trends in abundance and 

breeding success of red grouse and hen harriers in relation to changing management of 

a Scottish grouse moor. Wildlife Biology 2017: wlb.00246. 

22. Ludwig, S.C., Roos, S., & Baines D. (2019). Responses of breeding waders to restoration 

of grouse management on a moor in South-West Scotland. Journal of Ornithology, 160: 

789-797. 

23. D Bubb (2009) Langholm Moor Demonstration Project, Annual review of scientific 

monitoring 2009 - 

http://www.langholmproject.com/PDF%20downloads/Langholm%20Monitoring%20Rep

ort%202009%20-%20Website.pdf 

24. Berwyn, Migneint, Black Mountains & Radnor Upland Recovery Project in respect of the 

Nature Fund Project October 2015, Final Report –  

https://www.gwct.org.uk/media/763714/BMBMR-Nature-Fund-Upland-Recovery-

Project-NF-CG-002-30-10-15.pdf  

25.  Grant, M.C., Orsman, C., Easton, J., Lodge, C., Smith, M., Thompson, G., Rodwell, S. & 

Moore, N. 1999. Breeding success and causes of breeding failure of curlew Numenius 

arquata in Northern Ireland. J. Appl. Ecol. 36: 59–74. 

26. Deliverable E1 Technical publication on the direct and indirect predator management 

techniques for wader population stabilisation and increase, including implementation 

and efficacy of indirect measures. Life Waders for Real Report. Life 13 BIO/UK/000315 

27. Merricks, P., 2010. Comment: lapwings, farming and environmental stewardship. British 

Wildlife, 22(1), p.10. 

28. A Wales Action Plan for the Recovery of Curlew. Gylfinir Cymru / Curlew Wales. 

https://www.curlewwales.org/_files/ugd/c301ad_8aa71dc8ad034ae6866404a297f0db8

0.pdf  

Tudalen y pecyn 102



29. Reynolds, J. C., C. Stoat, M. H. Brockless, N. J. Aebischer, and S. C. Tapper. 2010. The 

consequences of predator control for brown hares (Lepus europaeus) on UK farmland. 

European Journal of Wildlife Research 56:541–549 

30. Fisher, G. & Walker, M. 2015. Habitat restoration for Curlew Numenius arquata at the 

Lake Vyrnwy reserve, Wales. Conservation Evidence 12: 48–52 

31. M. Harper. 2019. The conservationist's dilemma: an update on the science, policy and 

practice of the impact of predators on wild birds (6) 

https://community.rspb.org.uk/ourwork/b/martinharper/posts/the-conservationist-s-

dilemma-an-update-on-the-science-policy-and-practice-of-the-impact-of-predators-on-

wild-birds-6 

32. The Value of Shooting. The economic, environmental and social contribution of shooting 

sports to the UK by Public and Corporate Economic Consultants (PACEC). 

http://www.shootingfacts.co.uk/pdf/The-Value-of-Shooting-2014.pdf 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 103


	Agenda
	2.1 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd
	2.2 Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Economi
	4. MA_VG_1302_22 - Letter to ETRA Committee on TSP extension and pre-notification - Cym.pdf
	VG-0712-22 - Letter to the Minister for BREXIT opportunities and Government Efficiency.pdf
	VG-00761-22 - MEcon to Chancellor of the Duchy Lancaster re Pre-notification.pdf

	2.3 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd
	2.4 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a'r Trefnydd
	2.4 - 2022 11 01 Ltr Min RANW&T - Agri Bill - Corrections to EM - w.pdf
	2.4 - 2022 11 01 Ltr Min RANW&T - Table of EM changes - e only.pdf

	2.5 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau
	2.6 Llythyrau at y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd
	Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad – Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Bil Ffyniant Bro ac Adfywio

	3 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 7
	RSPCA Cymru - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig)
	Y Gynghrair yn Erbyn Chwaraeon Creulon - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig)
	Yr Ymgyrch Genedlaethol yn Erbyn Maglau - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig)
	Cat caught in snare in Wales, April 2019

	Cymdeithas Milfeddygon Prydain - papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn dystiolaeth 8
	Briefing note Wales specific.pdf
	Attn Cabinet Secretary Lesley Griffiths - snares petition.pdf
	Letter to committee for December 14th 2016.pdf
	BACKGROUND NOTE ON SNARES - General Brief Jan 2022.pdf
	Cymdeithas Rheoli Plâu Prydain - papur tystiolaleth (Saesneg yn unig)
	Cymdeithas y Technegwyr Plâu Cenedlaethol - papur tystiolaleth (Saesneg yn unig)
	Yr Ymddiriedolaeth Anifeiliaid Hela a Chadwraeth Bywyd Gwyllt - papur tystiolaleth (Saesneg yn unig)


